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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 27(b)(iii) of the standalone financial statements, in connection with an ongoing litigation
relating to assessment of property tax. Pending ultimate outcome of the matter. no adjustments have been made in the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.R. Batfibol & Assofiates LLP. a Limites Liatadity Partnership with LLP identily Mo, AAR- 4265
Read. Otfice ; 72, Camac Streot, Black ‘8, 3rd Flaar, Kolkata- 700 016



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Responsibility of Management for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, to the extent applicable, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, in electronic mode
on servers physically located in India so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the
matters stated in note 36 to the standalone financial statements that the backup of the books of account and
other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Company
has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis and for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on
the functioning of the Company;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g);

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(i) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence, provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025;

(j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements — Refer Note 27(b) to the standalone financial statements;
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ii.

vi.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any provision for material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
38(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
38(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software except
that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using certain access rights and in
respect of individual hotel units of the Company wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail
feature enabled throughout the year, as described in note 36 to the standalone financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled. Additionally, the audit
trail in respect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, as stated in note 36 to the standalone financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accounts

ICAI Firm Registraffon Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sudhir K

Partner
Members

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDO2826

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “*Report on other legal and regulatory requirements™ of
our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (“the Company™)

Report on the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*“the Order™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii) (a)

(b)

All property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is a regular program of verification which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3.1 to the standalone financial statements
included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations
received from the lenders.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31, 2025,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder as disclosed in the note
38(i) to the standalone financial statements.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from a bank
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us
in the normal course of audit of the standalone financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the
Company with such bank are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or

provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted

loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{c) The Company has granted loans to a company where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of

interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability

partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships

or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.
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(f)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to
be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the
extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement fo report on
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees® state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature Amount Amount Period to | Forum where the dispute is
ofthe | demanded | paid under | which the pending
dues (Rs. in protest amount
lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) relates
Karnataka Municipal Property 9,222 4,591 2011-12 to | High Court of Karnataka
Corporations Act, 1976 Tax 2021-22
read with Bruhat Bangalore
Mahanagara Palike
Property Tax Rules, 2009
Central Goods and Services | Goods 600 49 2018-19 to | Commissioner of Central
Tax Act, 2017; Karnataka | and 2020-21 | Tax (Appeals), Bengaluru
Goods and Services Tax Services 27 Nil 2019-20 to | Assistant Commissioner of
Act, 2017 and Integrated Tax 2020-21 | Central Tax (Appeals),
Goods and Services Tax Bengaluru
Act, 2017
Central Goods and Services | Goods 100 6 2020-21 | Deputy Commissioner of
Tax Act, 2017; Gujarat and State Tax (Appeals),
Goods and Services Tax Services Gandhinagar
Act, 2017 and Integrated Tax 1301 63 2019-20 | Deputy Commissioner of
Goods and Services Tax State  Tax  (Appeals),
Act, 2017 Gandhinagar
Central Goods and Services | Goods 5 Nil 2018-19 | Assistant  Commissioner
Tax Act, 2017; Kerala and Central Tax and Central
Goods and Services Tax Services Excise, Kakkanad
Act, 2017 and Integrated Tax
Goods and Services Tax
Act, 2017
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income 1 Nil 2019-20 | Principal Commissioner of
Tax Income Tax
235 Nil 2021-22 | National Faceless Appeal
Centre (NFAC), Delhi
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(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year as disclosed in note 38(vii) of
the standalone financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest as
applicable thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company,

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company. the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.

(xii) (a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have
been considered by us.
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(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 37 to the standalone financial statements, the ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company’s
current liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs. 10,011 lakhs, the Company has obtained the letter of financial
support from its holding company, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to spending on Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to spending on Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

=|\Bengaluru|g
[uo} ]

Membership Number: 213157 y

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDO2826 ' :

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Brigade Hotel
Ventures Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the *Guidance note™). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registratigh Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sudhir in
Partner
Membership"Number: 213157

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDO2826

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025



Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA201 6P LCO95986G

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Mirch 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Notes
ASSETS
Nom-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i
Capital work in progress 4
Intangible assels 32
Financial assets
Investments 5
Other non-current financial assets 6
Deferred 1ax assets (net) 7.1
Other non-current assets 8
Current tax assets (net) 13
Sub fotal
Current assets
Inventories 9
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10
Cash and cash equivalents 1.1
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.2
Other current financial assets 6
Other current assets 2
Sub total
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 121
Instruments entirely equity in nature 122
Other equity 13
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14
Lease linhilities 28
Other non=current financial liabilities 15
Other non-current liabilities 17
Non-cumrent provisions 16
Sub total
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14
Lease liabilities 28
Trade payables I8
- Total omstanding dues of micro emerprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Other cumrent financial liabilities 15
Other current liabilities 17
Current provisions 16
Sub total
Total equity and liabilities
Summary of matenal accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountant:

per Sudhi Jain

no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025

63,947 55,551
2,019 7,168
1 81
£.867 9,086
i 616
3,396 4,900
2,590 68
959 445
82,296 77,916
613 532
1,849 1,654
1.062 675
1,139 1,228
966 24
2503 1,536
8,152 5,899
90,448 83,815
28,143 100
- 28,043
(15328) {16,965)
12,815 11,178
44,603 48,598
13,897 11,834
- 185
862 878
108 76
39470 61,971
1,112 3,697
56 .
207 92
i 2523
2,100 2,640
1,266 1,572
191 142
18,163 10,666
90,448 83,815

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
5986

€
Director

Akanksh

Ananda Natarajon
Cluef Financial Officer Company

DIN: 06362115




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCOISIB6

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income (i)

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses (i)

Profit before tax (iii) = (i) = (ii)
Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Total tax expense (iv)

Profit for the year (v) = (iii) - (iv)

Other comprehensive income

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods;
Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Income tax effect - credit/(charge)

Other comprehensive income ('OCT") (vi)

Total comprehensive income for the year (vii) = (v) + (vi)
|eom prising profit and OCI for the year]

Earnings per share ('EPS')

[nominal value of share Rs. 10 (March 31, 2024; Rs.10)]

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs)

Summary of matenal accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm registration plimber: 101049W/E300004

Place; Bengaluru
Date: April 18,2025

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
19 40353 34,301
20 226 308

40,579 34,609
21 3om 3,580
22 7,752 6,794
23 4275 3,604
24 6,571 6,041
25 14,816 12,008
37391 32,027
3,188 2,582
1.2
1,516 22
1,516 1722
1,672 1,860
(47 5
12 (1)
(35) 4
1,637 1,864
26
0.58 0.66
21

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

An.m;da Natarajan
Chief Financial Officer

CIN: U74999KA201 6PQ?§86

Vineet Vi a
Directo
DIN: 06362115
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCO95986

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment 1o reconcile profit before tax 1o net cash Mows;
Depreciation and amortization expense
Reversal of impairment allowance for bad and doubtful debis
Linbility no longer required written back
Government Grants - Capital subsidy
Loss on sale of property, plani and equipment
Interest expense
Interest income
Operating profit before working eapital changes
Movements in working capital :
{Decrease) / increase in trade payables
{Decrease) / increase in other liabilities
{Decrease) / increase in provisions
(Increase) | decrease in inventories
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivable
{Increase) / decrease in other assels
Cash generated from operations
Direet taxes (paidyrefunds, net
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (A)

Cash Mlows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in bank depasits

Redemption of bank deposits

Proceeds from redemption of non-convertible debentures
Interest received

MNet cash Mow (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities

Net cash Now from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and eash equivalenis at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks:

- in current accounis

- in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalent as per balance sheet

Less: Bank overdraft

Cash and cash equivalent as per statement of eash flows

Notes  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3,188 1,582
3 4275 3,604
20 (15 (59)
20 (25) -
20 (16 (16)
25 8 174
24 6,571 6,041
20 (139) (197)
13,847 12,129
848 {430)
(255) 168
34 58
(80) (143)
(179) 29
(1,571) 1,551
12,644 13,422
(514) (111}
12,130 13311
31,4 (9,365) (5362)
= 5
(612) (684)
867 1,609
258 .
100 166
(8.752) (4,266)
1,832 3,997
(3,676) (5514)
(3.778) (3.957)
(68) (1,079)
(689) {602)
(6379) (7,155)
(3,001) 1,890
675 (1215)
(2.326) 675
21 23
937 652
104 &
1.1 1,062 675
14 (3.388) -
(2,326) 675

Note: Refer note 11,1 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities and note 28 for non-cash investing activities pertaining to right-of-use

assels,

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & A
Chartered Accountants

engaluru

n
™~
N,

é .

Place; Benpgalury
Date: April 18, 2025

11

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

DIN: 02750342

2

Ananda Natarajan
Chief Financial Officer

5986

Vin \’em/
Director

DIN: 063621135




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCO95986

Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital No. of shares Amount
(refer note 12.1) (in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

As at April 01, 2023 10 100

Changes during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 J{1] 100

As at April 01, 2024 10 100

Changes during the year 2,804 28,043

As at March 31, 2025 2,514 28,143
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature Na. of shares Amount
(refer note 12.2) (in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each ("OCRPS")

As at April 01, 2023 280 28,043

Changes during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 280 28,043

As at April 01, 2024 280 28,043

Changes during the year (280) (28.043)

As at March 31, 2025 - -
C. Other equity

(refer note 13)

Equity component of Retained Tatal
Compound Financial earnings
Instruments

As at April 01, 2023 6,750 (25,579) (18,829)
Profit for the year - 1,860 1,860
Other comprehensive income - 4 i
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,864 1,864
As at Narch 31, 2024 6,750 (23.715) (16,965)
As at April 01,2024 6,750 (23,715) (16,965)
Profit for the year - 1,672 1,672
Other comprehensive income - (35) (35)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,637 1,637
As at March 31, 2025 6,750 (22,078) (15,328)
Summary ol material accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date atiached
For S.R. Batliboi & A ates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registratio

per Sudhir Jain
Partner

Membershj no.: 213157

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025

umber: 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
CIN: UT4999KA2016P! 5086

Director
DIN: 06362115




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

k Corporate information

Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited {the ‘Company’) (CIN: U74999KA2016PLC093986) was incorporated on August 24, 2016, The registered office of
the Company is located at 29th Floor & 30th floors, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr Rajkumar Road. Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055. The Company is carrying on the hospitality business including running and managing hotels,

The standalone financial stalements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company on April
18, 2025,

2. Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 1o the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs). All the values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an
accounting estimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purposes of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- It 1s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purposes of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
evaluated and considered its operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and nen-current.

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above, are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/ are contractually repayable
within one year from the Balance sheet date and as non-current, in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

ic) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if’ capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Subsequent expenditure refated to an item of property, plant and equipment is added 1o its book value only if' it increases the future benefits from its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended
use are also included 1o the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property. plant and equipment is de-recognized.
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent
to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto, Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred
during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.
Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on written down value basis using the following useful lives estimated by the management, which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013:

Catepory of Asset Useful lives (in years)
Buildings 60
Plant and machinery 15
Electrical installation and equipment 10
Furniture and fixtures

*  Used in hotels, restaurants, efc. 8

. Others 10
Computer hardware

*  End user devices

. Server and network equipment
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

= U | o e

For certain hotel-specific assets, depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the
management based on technical assessment as below:

Category of Asset Useful lives Schedule I lives
(in years) (in years)

Buildings 25-30 60
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation and equipment 10 10
Furniture and fixtures

s Used in hotels, restaurants, etc. 8 8

. Others 10 10
Computer hardware

+  End user devices 3 3

*  Server and network equipment 6 6
Office equipment 5 5
Motor vehicles 8 8

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
Leasehold land — 25 to 35 years

The management considers residual value at 5% as preseribed under Schedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013,

The management believes that the above estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following mitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Nates fo Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a writien down value basis over a period of six years, which is estimated by the
management 1o be the useful life of the asset. In case of certain hotels, the mtangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a straight-
line basis over a period of six years as estimated by the management

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at cach [inancial year end and adjusted prospectively.
if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized,

[{}] Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or @ group of financial assets is impaired and measures the required
expected credit losses through a loss allowance. The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment losses on trade receivables. The Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables
wherein, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifietime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of maney and the risks specific to the asset, In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. 1f no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carmying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(g) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RolJ) asset at cost (included in Property, Plant and Equipment) and
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets. The cost of the right-of-use
assels comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the
shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that rate is not readily determined, the
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value puarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company
and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option 1o terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period m which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asseis, Where the camying amount
of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recogmised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Where the Company is lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an assel that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective assel. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss.

(i) Inventaries

Inventories comprising of food, beverages and other items are valued at lower of’ cost and net realizable value, Cost of inventories is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

() Revenue recognition
Revenue firom contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction
price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents
revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction
price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from hospitality services
Revenue from hospitality operations comprise revenue from room charges, food & beverage sales, facility usage charges and allied services, including
telecommunication, laundry, etc. Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered and 1s disclosed net of allowances.

Contract balances

Contract asset is the right o consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services o a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a coniract
liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

Income from lease rentals
Refer accounting policy under “Leases™ above.

Interest income

Interest income, including income ansing from other financial mstruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the effective interest rate
{EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropriate. to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when sharcholders approve the
dividend.

C%;
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Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

(k) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (‘the functional currency'). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Foretgn currency transactions and balances

i} Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognition,

ii) Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rale prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monctary items, which
are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction. Non-
monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate
at the date when such value was determined.

iiii) Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as
income or as expense in the period in which they arise. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

() Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Employee Pension Fund Schemes are
defined contribution schemes (collectively the *Schemes®). The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the Schemes. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service, The contribution paid in
excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project unit credit method as
at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and
lasses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements, com prising
of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss:
P Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements, and
P Interest expense

Accumulated leave, which is expected 1o be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures
the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused emtitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-tlerm employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, made at the
end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated
leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months
after the reporting date.

(m) Income taxes

Income (ax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized m other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

1. Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based
on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thase that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

ii. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary diffevences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

eredits and unused tax losses can be utilized. VEN
‘¢
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred income tax assetsand liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax linbilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set oft current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax libilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultancously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected (o be settled or
recovered.

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whase existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nat wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses
it in the standalone financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

(o) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related assel.
(p) Financial Instruments

Fitiancial
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset.
5 ent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four calegones:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recyeling of eumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OC1 with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition {equily instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

VYYVvYYyY

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments) :
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. For debt instruments,
at fair value through OCL, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost, The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OC is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss,

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through OCIL Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been established.
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ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through
OC1 when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
15 determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
and loss when the nght of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OC1. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OC] are not subject to
impairment assessment,

w. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amertization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
" ;
Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost. Impairment recognized, if any, is reduced from the camying value.

De-i itio inanci

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the balance sheet) when:

a)  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b}  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

B. Financial lighilities
Initial e |

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables,
as appropriate. The Company s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

#  Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss

#  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

i, Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and finanecial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

il Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (*EIR ") method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other payables maturing
within ene year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

b ition of financial liabili
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated ag the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
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The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. Afier initial recogmition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are cquity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if’
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

D. Offsetting of financial i

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount 15 reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention o settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the Liabilities simultaneously.

: Fai - financial i

The Company measures its financial instruments such as derivative instruments, ete at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the hiability takes place either:

# In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
# Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabil ity

The fair value of an asset or a liabality is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability 1o generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

All assets and hiabilities for which fair value i1s measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

» Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

# Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

# Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant {o the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the siandalone financial statemenis on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(q) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable fo equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are ireated as a fraction of an equity share io the exteni that they are
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

(s) Cash dividend 1o equity holders of the Company

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution
is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and
interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements reguires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 2 material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which have the most
significant effect on the amounts rccngmzed in the standalone financial statements. The key judgment, mlmaﬂcs and assumptions concerning the ﬁ.uure
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, which have a significant risk of causing a matenial adjustment to the ca
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amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgments and assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used by management are as below:
Defined benefit plans — Gratuity

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary
increase thereon.

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined based on evaluation made by the management
of the expected usage of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence of the asset. Due to the judgments involved in
such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in future period.

Evaluation of comtrol._joint control or significant influence by the Company over its investee entity for disclosure

Judgment is involved in determining whether the Company has control over an investee entity by assessing the Company 's exposure/rights to variable
returns from its invelvement with the investee and its ability to affect those retumns through its power over the investee entity. The Company considers
all facts and circumstances when assessing whether it controls an investee entity and reassess whether it controls an investee entity if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control. In assessing whether the Company has joint control over an investee
the Company assesses whether decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Further, in assessing
whether Company has significant influence over an investee, the Company assesses whether it has the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the mvestee, but is not in control or joint control of those policies.

Measurement of financial instrumenis at amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR") method. The computation of amortized cost is
sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in
assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after Apnil 01, 2024,
The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracis

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or afier April 01, 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure, Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardiess of
the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with diseretionary participation features; a few scope
exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

= A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the vaniable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the
nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect o
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates Lo the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Apnl 01, 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116,

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Company s standalone financial statements,
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3l

Property, plant and equipment

Leaschold Office
Freehold land Buildings Plant &  Electrical Office  equipment Computer  Motor  Furniture Total
Land (ROU machinery installation equipment (ROU hardware wvehicles & fixtures
Asseis) * Assets)*
Cost
At April 01, 2023 3,042 5,729 52,788 8,120 3,790 6,205 - 1,246 162 14,662 95,744
Additions - 6,000 303 76 24 190 - 34 - 126 6,753
Disposals/Adjustments - B (355) (37) = {110 = (%) - (66) (577)
At March 31, 2024 S.D.E 1!.’29 52,736 8.159 3,814 6,185 — _lhl'..'l 162 Mi'.r'ZZ IDIigilll
Additions 75 1,790 6,411 R 948 817 132 204 = 1,246 12,631
Disposals/ Adjustments - > = = - (231) - - - - (231)
At March 31, 2025 3.117 13,519 59,147 9,067 4,762 6,871 232 1475 162 15968 114,320
Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 - 631 15,583 4,882 2,663 5,581 - 1,093 115 12,655 43,203
Additions - 181 1,754 449 259 279 - 108 1 523 3.564
Disposals - . (191) (32) . (105) . (8) - (62) (398)
At March 31, 2024 - 812 I'.'.L-:iﬂ 5&99 2,922 5.25 - 1119] 126 !I]Ii 16 46&69
Additions - 422 1,863 467 340 354 60 76 9 636 4,227
Disposals - - - - - (223) - - - - (223)
At March 31, 2025 - 1,234 19,009 5,766 3&63 5,886 6l 1,269 135 13,752 S0373

Net book value
At March 31, 2024
At March 31, 2025

10,917
12,285

Capitalised borrowing costs
Refer note 4 for details of capitalised borrowing costs.

Assets under construction
Refer note 4 for detnils of capital work in progress.

Assets pledged
Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for bormowings,

Assets leased

*Represents Right-of-use assets. Also refer note 28 for details.

Title deeds of immovable properties

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreemenis are duly execuied in favour of the lessee)
included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The property, plant and equipment of the Company include land, buildings and other assets with a gross carrying value of Rs. 35,168 lakhs, which were acquired by the
Company from its Holding Company - Brigade Enterprises Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and its Holding Company and their
respective shareholders and creditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 to 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 to transfer the hotel business undertakings, including
the aforesaid land, buildings and other assets, to the Company (hereinafier referred to as “the Scheme™). The Scheme was approved by National Company Law Tribunal
{*NCLT") on March 13, 2018 with an appointed date of October 01, 2016 and was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka on April 01, 2018,
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3.2 Intangible Assets

Com puter
Soﬂ“_pam Total
Cost
At April 01,2023 754 754
Additions - -
Disposals - -
At March 31,2024 754 754
Additions 143 143
Disposals - -
At March 31,2025 897 897
Amortization
At April 01,2023 632 632
Charge for the year 40 40
Disposals - -
At March 31,2024 672 672
Charge for the year 48 48
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2025 720 720
Net book value
At March 31,2024 82 82
At March 31,2025 177 177
4 Capital work in progress
Property Plant
and Equipment T
At April 01, 2023 2,935 2,935
Additions during the year 4,619 4,619
Less; Capitalised during the year (386) (386)
At March 31, 2024 7,168 7.168
Additions during the year 5,460 5,460
Less: Capitalised during the year (10,609) (10,609)
At March 31, 2025 2,019 2.019
Capital work in progress ageing schedule
Amount in Capital work in progress for the period of Total
<1 Year 1-2 veirs 2-3 vears >3 years
At March 31, 2025
Projects in progress 1,548 220 15 236 2,019
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,548 220 15 236 1019
At March 31,2024
Projects in progress 4448 403 77 2,240 7,168
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 4,448 403 77 2,240 7,168
Notes:

1. The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs. 237 lakhs (March 31, 2024; Rs. 165 lakhs).
and the capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitahisation was 9-10% pa.

2. Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for bormowings
3. There are no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
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5 Non-Current Investments

A. Investments carried at cost

Trrvestament in equity instruments of substdiaries

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

2.02 lakhs (March 31, 2024; 2.02 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs.10/= each fully paid up in SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures 8,375 8375
Limited (PHVL')
Less: Impairment loss (3,000) (3,000)
5,375 5,375
Investment in preference shares of subsidiaries
32.44 lakhs (March 31, 2024; 32,44 lakhs) 0.01% A Series Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each 3,244 3,244
fully paid up in PHVL
Trvestiment in other equity of suhsidiaries
PHVL (Other equity upon subscription of 0.01% Non-convertible Debentures in PHVL) 155 155
Total Investments carried at cost (A) 8,774 8.774
B. Investments at amortised cost
Trvesimani in debentures of subsidiaries
1,00 lakhs (March 31, 2024; 3,58 lakhs) 0.01% Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100/ each fully paid up in PHVL 93 312
Total Investments at amortised cost (B) 93 312
Total Investments (A+B) 8,867 9,086
a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments % _
b) Aggregate amount of other investments 8,867 9,086
¢) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 3,000 3,000
6 Other financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
Non-current Current
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Margin money deposits with banks* 208 232 - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of more than 12 months 93 253 - -
Security deposit 40 131 736 42
Interest accrued - - 70 70
Unbilled revenue - - 160 162
341 616 966 274

*Margin money deposits have been made towards borrowings, letter of credit and bank guarantee facilities availed by the Company from banks. Refer note 14

for details of deposits pledged as security for borrowings.
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T Income tax
7.1

Deferrod tax

Duferred tax lahilities

Property, plant and equipement - Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amontization

charged for the financial reporting (including impact of lease sccounting)
Right of use assets

Impact relating to compound financial instruments

Gross deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Unused tax losses
Lease liabilities

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and allowed for

tax purposes in a subsequent year on payment hasis

Impact of accounting for financial instruments at amortized cost
Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax assets
Notes:

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
2,165 2334
3,135 3,179
1,011 1,613
6,311 7,126
5,683 7.989
3,512 3,761

124 276
388 ;
9,707 12,026
3,396 4,900

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘the Ordinance’) provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower rate of 25.17%
instead of the normal rate of 29.12% (as applicable to the Company), if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Company has
made an assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and during the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has decided to opt for the lower tax rate of 25.17%.
Consequently, deferred tax charge for year ended March 31, 2025 is higher by Rs, 664 lakhs.

The unused tax losses towards business loss [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 452 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 1,890 lakhs)] can be carried forward for a maximum
period of eight financial years immediately succeeding the financial year in which the loss was first computed and would expire, if not utilised, starting from
financial year 2029-2030. Further, the unused tax losses towards unabsorbed depreciation [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 5,231 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 6,099

lakhs)] can be carried forward for an indefinite period,

Reconciliation of deferred tax assct (net)

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 4,900 5,623
Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit or loss (1,516) (722)
Deferred tax recognised in OCI (12) ()
Closing balance of deferred tax assets 3,372 4.900
Maovement in deferred tax assets (net) for Balance as at “'::::lg:::cdr:;t Recognised in Recognised in Balamee as at
the year ended March 31, 2025 April 01, 2024 P oct other equity March 31, 2025
(#) Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- 2334 (169) - - 2,165
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting
Right of use assets 3,179 (44) - - 3,135
Impact relating to compound financial instruments 1,613 (602) - - 1,011
7.126 (815) . - 6,311
(b) Deferred tax assets
Unused tax losses 7.989 (2,306) - - 5,683
Lease liabilities 3,761 (249) - - 3,512
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss 276 (140) (12) - 124
in the current year and allowed for tax purposes in a subsequent
year on payment basis
Impact of accounting for financial instruments at amortized cost - 388 388
12,026 (2,307) (12) z 9,707
Net deferred tax assets (b)-(a) 4,900 (1,492) (12) - 3,396
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Recognised in

Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for Balance as at PR i Recognised in Recognised in Balance as at
the year ended March 31, 2024 April01, 2023 ¥ "or m?’“' > ocl other equity  March 31, 2024
(a) Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- 2186 148 - - 2334
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting
Right of use assets 1,485 1,694 - - 3,179
Impact relating 1o compound financial instruments 1,984 (371) - = 1,613
5.655 1471 - - 7,126

(b) Deferred tax assets
Unused tax losses §.852 (863) - - 7,989
Lease liabilities 1,966 1,795 - - 3,761
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss 460 (183) (n - 276
in the current year and allowed for tax purposes in a subsequent
year on payment basis

11,278 749 (1) - 12,026
Net deferred tax assets (b) - (a) 5,623 (722) n - 4,900

7.2 Tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Profit or Loss section
Current tax

Current income tax charge - -
Deferred tax credit

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary diflerences 1,516 722
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,516 721

0CI Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT during the year

Income tax relating 1o re-measurement (gains) losses on defined benefit plans (12) 1
Income tax expense/(eredit) reported in OCI (12) 1

¢) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 3,188 1,582
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Tax onaccounting profit at statutory income tax rate 802 752
Tax effect due to change in rate 665 -
Tax effect of other items, net 49 (30)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,516 722

7.3 Current tax assets (net)

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Current tax assets (net) 959 445
—

8 Other assets

(Unsecured)

Non-current Current
March 31,2025 March 31,2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Considered good

Balances with statutory / government authorities - - 605 850

Advance 1o suppliers - - 322 241

Capital advances 2,590 68 . -

Prepaid expenses - - 1,546 415

Advance to Employees - - 30 30

2,590 (3] 2,503 1,536
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9 Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Food and beverages 365 473
Stores and sparcs 48 50
613 532

For details of inventories pledged as security for borrowings refer note 14,

10 Trade receivables
{unsecured)

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Trade receivables - considered good

Receivables from related parties (refer note 29) 23 48

Receivables from others parties 1,826 1,606
Trade receivables - credit impaired 55 70
Total trade receivables 1,904 1,724
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Trade receivables - credit impaired (55) (70)
Total trade receivables 1,849 1,654

Note: Refer note 14 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings.

a. Details of provision for impairment is as below: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 70 129
Add: Provision made during the year - =
Less: reversal upon realisation during the year (15) (59)
Balance at the end of the year 55 70

b. Trade receivables ageing schedule:

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due daie of payment

< 6 months & months- 1-2 years 1-3 years >3 Years Total

1 year

March 31, 2025
Undisputed, considered good 1,618 7 . - " 1,625
Undisputed, credit impaired $ 7 13 15 - 40
Disputed, considered good - - - - 224 224
Disputed, credit impaired - - - - 15 15
Total 1,623 14 13 15 239 1,904 |
March 31, 2024
Undisputed, considered good 1,406 24 = - - 1,430
Undisputed, credit impaired - 8 43 4 - 15
Disputed, considered good B - - B 24 124
Disputed, credit impaired . - = - 15 15
Total 1,406 12 43 4 139 1,724
Notes:

1. Trade receivable are non interest bearing and are due from the date of transactions.

2, The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables, The Company follows
the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Company
to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or
reversal) recognised during the year is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, This amount is reflected under the head *other expenses/other
income” in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. Trade receivable include receivable due from directors and other related parties

Particulars March 31,2025  March 31,2024
WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ['WTC'] 0 29
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited [BHSL'] 0 0
Brigade Innovations LLP [BILLP] 1 0
Brigade Properties Private Limited'BPPL] - L]
Brigade Gujarat Projects Private Limited [BGPPL') 8 1
Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited ['BFOS') 0 0
Mysore Holdings Private Limited [MHPL'] - 2
Brigade Enterprises Limited [BEL'] 12 11
2 1

SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited [PHVL']
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11.1 Cash and eash equivalents

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Cash on hand 21 23
Balances with banks:
=10 current accounts 937 652
- in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months 104 -
1,062 675
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Non-current boCu r;::l Interest acerucd
Particulars portion of il and not due on Total
borrowings (incinding borrowings
current portion)
Balance as at April 01, 2023 43,918 10,858 - 54,776
(Cash inflows 3997 - - 3997
Cash outflows (5.514) - - (5,514)
Acerual of finance cost (other than interest on lease liability) - - 5,278 5,178
Interest paid (other than imerest on lease liability) - - (3,957) (3,957)
Accrual of interest on loans from related parties 1,321 - (1.321) F
Change in bank overdraft (forming part of cash and cash equivalents) - (1,B85) - (1,885)
Others* 5,276 (5,276) . -
Balance ns at March 31, 2024 48,998 3,697 - 52,695
Cash inflows 1,832 - - 1,832
Cash outflows (3,676) - - (3,676)
Acerual of finance cost (other than interest on lease hability) - - 5,254 5,254
Interest paid (other than interest on lease liability) - - (3,778) (3,778)
Accrual of interest on loans from related parties 1,476 - (1,476 =
Change in bank overdraft (forming part of cash and cash equivalents) - 3,388 = 3388
Others* (4,027) 4027 - :
Balance as at March 31, 2025 44,603 11,112 - 55,715
* Others indicate the effect of movement between current and non-current borrawings basis the balance repayment period.
1.2 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Non-current Current
March 31, 2025  March 31,2024  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
Margin money deposits 208 232 - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of more than 12 months 93 253 =
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but not more than 12
months - - 1,159 1,228
ol 485 1,159 1,228
Less: Disclosed under non-current financial assets (refer note 6) (301) (485) - -
= = 1,159 1,228
Note: Deposits earned interest based on the bank deposit rates,
Brenk up of financial assets carried at amortised cost March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Investments (note 5) 93 312
Other financial assets (note 6) 1,307 890
Trade receivables (note 10) 1,849 1,654
Cash and cash equivalents (note 11.1) 1,062 675
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (note 11.2) 1,159 1,228
5,470 4,759
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12.1  Equity share eapital

Authorised share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lnkhs Rs,
Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the vear 90 900 20 900
Changes during the year 4410 44,100 - -
Balance at the end of the year 4.500 45,000 90 200
Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Nao. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 10 100 10 100
Changes during the year 2,804 28,043 - -
Balance at the end of the year 2814 28,143 10 100

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one voie per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, affer distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

() Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company
2,814 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - 10 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs, [0 each 28,143 100

(b} Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Nao. in lakhs % holding No. in lakhs % holding
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company 2,814 100% 10 100%
(c) Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025
Promoter Name No. of shares at the  Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
(in lakhs) e lnhn) (in Takhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 10 2,804 2814 100.00% 28043%
company
As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name No. of shares at the  Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year yome end of the year the year
{in lakhs) (i Rakckis) (in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 10 - 10 100.00% -

company

d) For details of shares reserved for issue under options, refer note 12.3
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12.2  Instruments entirely equity in nature

Authorised share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs.100 each ("OCRPS'):

Balance at the begimning of the year 281 28,100 281 28,100
Changes during the year (281) (28,100) - -
Balance at the end of the year - - 281 28,100
Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No, in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
OCRPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 280 28,043 280 28,043
Changes during the year (280) (28,043) - -
Balance at the end of the year - - 280 28,043

Terms of conversion/ redem ption of OCRPS

OCRPS has been issued carrying o coupon of 0.01% (point zero one per cent) per annum calculated on the face value of such OCRPS. The holder of
OCRPS may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty) years exercise the option to convent the OCRPS to equity shares. Each OCRPS shall be
convertible into 10 (ten) equity shares or lesser number based on the consent of the holder. The holder of OCRPS shall be entitled to voting rights as per
the Companies Act, 2013.

The halder has confirmed compulsory conversion of the OCRPS into equity shares in the ratio of 1:10 and accordingly OCRPS has been recorded and
disclosed as "Instruments entircly equity in nature”.

With effect from May 10, 2024, pursuant to the option exercised by the holder of the OCRPS and approval of the Board of Directors and the
sharcholders of the Company, 2,80,43,000 OCRPS have been converted 10 28,04,30,000 equity shares of the Company of Rs. 10/- each at a ratio of 1:10
{i.e., 10 Equity Sharcs issued for every | OCRPS held by the holder of the OCRPS).

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company
Nil {March 31, 2024 - 280,43,000) OCRPS of Rs.100 each . 28,043

(b) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. in lakhs % holding No. in lakhs % holding
OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company - 100% 280 100%
() Shares held by promoters
As at Mareh 31, 2025
Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
{in lakhs) (in lakhs)
OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 280 (280) - 0.00% -100%
company
As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
(in lakhs) {in lakhs)

OCRPS of Rs. 100 each :
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding 280 . 280 100,00% -

company
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13 Other equity

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity Com ponent of Compound Financial Instruments

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,750 6,750
Changes during the year - -
Balance at end of the year (A) 6,750 6,750

Equity component of compound financial instruments being deemed capital contribution (i.e. interest-free related party loans) represents the residual
amount afler deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined for the liability component and tax effect

thereon,

Retained earnings / (deficit)

Balance at the beginning of the year (23,715) (25,579)
Profit for the year 1,672 1,860
Other comprehensive income for the year (35) 4
Balance at the end of the year (B) gz__z.ms; (23,715)
Total other equity (A+B) (15,328) (16,965)

Retained eamnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has carned/incurred till date, less any transfers 1o general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to sharehelders. It also includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to
statement of profit and loss,

/

A [BENGALURU
"
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14

Borrowings
bl Maturity  ypareh31,2025  March 31,2024
interest rate period

Non-current borrowings
Term loan from banks (secured) £-10% Upto 2033 34,558 36,701
Loans from related parties (unsecured; refer note 29) None (i) Note (ii) 10,045 12,297

44,603 48,998
Current borrowings
Loun repayable on demand
Bank overdraft (Secured) B-10%% On demand 3,388 -
Current maturities of non-current borrowings - term loans from banks (Secured) B-10%: Upto 2033 3,996 3,697
Current maturities of non-currenl borrowings - Loans from related parties (unsecured, refer note 29) 3,728 -
Total Current borrowings 11,112 3,697

Notes:

(i) Term loan from banks are secured by way of first morigage of hotel project properties, assignment of certain current assets and future receivables. The loans
carries floating interest rate in the range of 8-10% and are repayable over period of 60-153 monthly instalments of Rs.322-Rs.959 lakhs.

(ii) Loan from related parties are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025. On July 1, 2020, the Company and its Holding Company
entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs.20,000 lakhs and repayable in quanterly instalments of Rs.1,000 lakhs each from June 2025
10 March 2030. The existing loan payable of Rs. 11,274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs 9,881 lakhs and Interest payable - Rs.1,393 lakhs) was converted
into interest-free loan as pant of the aforesaid agreement. The Company has drawn loan of Rs.5,016 lakhs during the period July 27, 2020 1o March 31, 2021 and
Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 1o March 31, 2023, The Company has accounted the aforesaid loan, being interest-free in nature, as
compound financial instruments in accordance with Ind AS 32 with effective interest rate of 12%.,

(iii) Bank overdrafts are secured by way of mortgage of a hotel projeet property, assipnment of certain current assets and [uture receivables,

(iv) The quarterly returns / statements filed by the Company with banks under the borrowings arrangements are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company,

(v) With regard 1o the borrowings from banks, the Company has utilised the loans solely for the purposes for which they were taken,

(vi) No funds on short-term basis have been used for long term purposes by the Company.

(vii) The Company has satisfied all debt covenants as per the terms of borrowings.

Other financial labilities

Non-Current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Lease deposits - 185 192 -
Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment - - 1,206 1,983
Employee benefits payable - - 471 423
Interest free deposits from customers - - 231 234

- 185 2,100 2,640
Provisions Non-Current Current

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Pravision for emplovee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 108 76 46 39

Provision for leave encashment - - 145 103
108 76 191 142
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17 Other liabilitics

Non-Current

Current

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Advance from customers - - 587 478
Deferred government grants® 862 878 16 16
Deferred lease income - - 153 154
Statutory dues payable - - 510 924

862 878 1,266 1,572

* The Company has received grants in the nature of capital subsidy, interest subsidy and clectricity duty subsidy of Rs. 1,056 lakhs under the Tourism Policy for
the State of Gujarat (2015-2020) from the government of Gujarat for the purpose of construction of a hotel property in GIFT city, Gujarat,

The capital subsidy is towards capital investment made by the Company in the hotel property. Accordingly, amount of capital subsidy received is treated as a
deferred govermnment grant and is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

The interest subsidy and electicity duty subsidy are towards the costs incurred by the Company towards construction of the hotel property and the same has been
recognised as income in the stalement of profit and loss to the extent of the corresponding expenses incurred by the Company.

18 Trade payables

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 35) 207 9
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- Pavable 1o related parties (refer note 29) 318 152
- Payable to other partics 2,913 2,371
3,438 1,615
Trade payab n
Particulars Unbilled and Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
- <6 Months |° 00 2 veans 2-3 Years >3 Years o
1 Year
March 31, 2025
MSME - 207 - - - - 207
Others 1,890 1,036 300 - 5 - 3,231
Disputed dues -MSME - . - . - - -
Dispuied dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total 1,890 1,243 300 - 5 - 3,438
March 31, 2024
MSME - 92 - - - - 92
Others 1,401 1,082 1 6 8 25 2,513
Disputed dues -MSME - - - - . . -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - = -
Total 1,401 1,174 1 [ 8 25 2,615
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings (note 14) 44,603 48,998
Current borrowings (note 14) 11,112 3,697
Other financial liabilities (note 15) 2,100 2,825
Lease liabilities (note 28) 13,897 11,834
Trade payables (note 18) 3438 2615
75,150 69,969
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19 Revenue from operations

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers

- Revenue from hospitality services 39,773 33,804
Income from leasing 580 497
40,353 34,301

19.1  Disageregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services:

Revenue from contracts with customers March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from hospitality services - Recognised over time 39773 33,804

19.2  Contract balances

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 1,849 1.654
Unbilled revenue 160 162
2,009 1,816

Advance from customers 587 478
587 478

Trade receivable are due from the date of transactions.

Unbilled revenue pertains to transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and contractual invoices have not been raised.

Contract liabilitics includes advance from customers and deferred revenue representing transaction price allocated o unsatisfied performance
obligations. The outstanding balance has decreased primarily on account of recognition of revenue in curnent year,

Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liabilities 478 482
balance at the beginning of the year:

20 Other income

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost;

Bank deposits 97 140
Loans to related parties 37 34
Others 5 23
Government grants 16 16

Liability no longer required written back 25 .
Reversal of impainment allowance for bad and doubiful debis 15 59
Miscellaneous income 31 36
226 308

21 Cost of materials consumed

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year 532 389

Add: Purchases during the year 4,058 3,723
4,590 4,112

Less: Inventory at the end of the year (613) (532)

3977 3,580
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22

13

24

25

Employee henefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note 32)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (refer note 3.1)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 3.2)

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost
on bank borrowings
on related party borrowings (refer note 29)
on lease liabilities

Other borrowing costs

Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 28)
Repairs & maintenance
Buildings
Plant & machinery
Others
Sub-contracting expenses
Consumable costs
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Payment to auditor (refer note below)
Property taxes
Advertising and sales promotion
Agency commission
Security charges
Training and recruitment expenses
Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery expenses
Travelling & conveyance
Communication expenses
Directors sitting fees
Exchange difference (net)
Loss from Sale of PPE
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors (excluding goods and service tax):
As auditor: Audit fees
Out of pocket expenses

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6,623 51
403 355
726 667
7.752 65,794
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,227 3,564
48 40
4,275 3,604
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3,430 3,677
1,476 1,321
1,317 763
348 280
671 G041
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2,440 2353
968 707
380 369
361 407
318 330
1.642 893
1,332 1,148
164 212
699 422
95 62
544 404
762 560
1,538 1,163
19 12
100 74
2,243 1,807
128 120
673 489
193 162
52 -
46 25
8 174
111 115
14,816 12,008
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
89 59
6 3
95 62

Note: The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to spending on Corporate Social Responsibility 1s not applicable to the

Company,
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26 Earnings per share ('EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outsianding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity
shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Profit attributable 1o equity sharcholders 1.637 1,364
Effect of dilution - =
Profit attributable to equity sharcholders adjusted for the effect of dilution 1,637 1,864
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No.in lakhs) 2,814 2,814
[includes Nil (March 31, 2024: 2804 lakhs) equity shares to be issued on conversion of OCRPS being a

mandatorily convertible instrument. Also refer note 12.2]

Effect of dilution a =
Weighted average number of equity shares ad justed for the effect of dilution 2,814 2,814

Note: The impact of OCRPS, being a mandatorily convertible instrument, has not been considered in the computation of diluted EPS as the same has
already been included in the computation of basic EPS.

27 Commitments and contingencies

a. Capital commitment
The estimated amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is Rs. 18,948 lakhs (March

31,2024: Rs, 2,298 lakhs).

h. Contingent linbilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(1) Bank guaraniee 221 358
{ii) Claims against the Company not acknowledged us debts in the nature of:

-Income Tax demands 236 235
-Goods and Service Tax demands 2,033 700

(iii) Property tax demand under litigation

The Company has been discharging property tax in respect of its hotel properties. In this regard, the Company has received a demand notice from the
municipal authority assessing the property tax for cenain hotel property for the period from financial year 2011-12 to financial year 2021-22 resulting
in demand of Rs.9,222 lakhs including interest and penalty thereon and the Company has subsequently paid Rs.4,093 lakhs under protest and an
additional amount of Rs,510 lakhs to be paid under protest, which are provided for. During the year ended March 31, 2025, aforesaid demand was
revised by the municipal authority to Rs. 2,874 lakhs (net of payment under protest already provided for) for the financial year 2011-12 to financial
year 2023-24 under One time settlement Scheme by a competent authority,

The Company has litigated the aforesaid matter, which is pending adjudication. The Company is reasonably confident of a favourable outcome in
respect of the aforesaid matter based on the management’s evaluation and the legal opinion obtained by the management. Pending ultimate outcome
of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the accompanying standalone financial siatements.

{iv) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the Code came into effecton 3 May
2023, However, the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Company believes the impact of the
change will not be significant.
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28  Leases

A. Company as Lessee during the year
The Company has taken land parcels on lease for operation/consiruction of hotel units with a lease penod of 25-35 years with cerfain escalation and
extension clauses. The Company’'s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets,

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less, The Company applies the ‘short-term lease”’ recognition exemptions for

these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and Right of use assets  Right of use assets
movements during the vear: (Leasehold land)  (Office Equipment)
Balance as at April 01,2023 5,098 =
Additions during the year 6,000 -
Depreciation during the year (181) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 10,917 -
Additions during the year

a) Amount of lease liabilities recognised 1,327 232
b) Difference between the lease deposit and present value of lease deposit 463 -
Depreciation during the year (422) 160)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 12,285 172

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilitics and the movements during the year:

Lease liabilities

Balance as at April 01, 2023 6,752
Additions during the year 6,000
Accretion of interest 763
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (1.079)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (602)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 II&
Additions during the year 1,559
Accretion of interest 1,317
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (68)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 689
Balance as at March 31, 2025 - 13953
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current lease liabilites 13,897 11,834
Current leasc liabilities 56 -
Total t_I&J 11&
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 12%. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 31
Statement of profit and loss March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 482 181
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,317 763
Expense relating 1o shori-term leases (included in other expenses under rent) 968 707
Total amount recognised in the statem ent of profit and loss 2,767 1,651
Statement of cash flows March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash outflow for leases - towards principal 68 1,079
Cash outflow for leases - towards interest 689 602

B. Company as lessor during the year
The Company has entered into cancellable operating leases consisting of certain retail and banquet spaces in the hotels on short term basis with
renewal clauses. The Company is also required to maintain the property over the lease term.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease rentals recognised as an income in the statement of profit and loss 580 497
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29 Related party information

1. List of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have been entered into:

Holding company Brigade Enterprises Limited [BEL]
Subsidiary compamy SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited [PHVL']
Fellow Subsidiaries WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ["WTC]

Perungudi Real Estntes Private Limited [PREPLY]
Brigade (Gujarat) Projects Private Limited [BGPPL]

Brigade Foundation Trust[BFT’)

Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited [BFOS]
Brigade Properties Private Limited[BPPL']
Mysore Holdings Private Limited [MHPL]

1. Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

Directors Ms, Nirupa Shankar (Managing Director w.e.f October 05, 2024)

Mr. Vineet Verma
Mr. Amar Mysore

Mr, Bijou Kurien {w.e.f. March 28, 2024)
Mr, Anup S Shalh (w.e.f. March 28, 2024)
Ms. Jyoti Narang (w.e.f. May 10, 2024)
Mr. Nokul Anand (w.e.f October 05, 2024)

Relative of KMP Ms, Pavita Shankar

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Ananda Natarajan

Company Secretary Ms. P Shivaleela Reddy (upto August 09, 2024)
Ms. Niddhi Parekh (upto April 8, 2023)
Ms. Akanksha Bijawat (w.e.f October 01, 2024)
Manager Mr. Rayan Aranha (w.e.{ January 26, 2024 upto October 4, 2024)

Mr. Anndam Muokherjee (upto January 25, 2024)

NI, Transactions with related parties

Brigade Hospitality Services Limited [BHSL]

Brignde Innovations LLP ['BILLF)

BCV Developers Private Limited [BCV')

L MNature of transaction Name of related party March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from hospitality services 184 125
| Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 15 183
Purchase of materials BEL . 15
Capital advance paid 1,250 -
Interest on borrowings 1,476 1.321
Rent paid 724 597
| Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 13 12
Rent paid I -
Redemption of non-convertible debentures 258 -
. Ly PHVL
Security deposit paid 1 ~
Revenue from hospitality services - 15
Interest income on non-convertible debentures 37 34
Purchuse of materials 1 ]
Capital advance paid BHSL 76 -
Revenue from hospitality services z 2
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 71 136
Revenue from hospitality services BCV '] -
Revenue from hospitality services BPPL I -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company - 8
Revenue from hospitality services BFOS I 0
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company I 2
Revenue from hospitality services ] 2
Reimbursement of expenses received by the Company BGPPL 3 o
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company | 3
Revenue from hospitality services WTEC 10 5l
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 02 218
BFT 0 2
P s BILLP 16 3
Revenue from hospitality services PREPL = m
MHPL 2 B
Mr. Rayan Aranha 54 19
P Shivaleela Reddy 4 [
Salaries and allowances - short term employes benefits Akanksha Bij 22 -
Niddhi Parckh - 1
Ananda Natarajan 36 -
ROU asset acquired Mirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 895 -
Lease liabilities consequent 1o the ROU asset acquired Nirupa Shankar B95 =
Pavitra Shankar B95 -
Interest on lease labilities Nirupa Shankar 57 -
Pavitra Shankar 57 -
Security deposit - lease Mirupa Shankar 250 -
Pavitra Shankar 250 -
Bijou Kurien I -
- - Nakul Anand 8 .
tors Siting Fees
4 w Anup § Shah 3 -
/-_\ i Iyoti Narang 15 3
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Related party disclosure (continued)

v, Balances with related parties

Tor the year ended March 31, 2025

Nature of balance MName of related party March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 |

Non-current borrowings (mcluding current maturities) 13,773 12297
(Capital advance 1250 .
Equity component of inferest-free loan BEL 6,750 6,750
Trade payables 1 5
Trade Receivables 12 11
Investment in Equity shares (net of impainment loss) 5375 5375
Investment in Preference shares 3244 3244
Investment in Other Equity PHVL 155 155
Investment in Non-convenible debentures 9 312
Security deposit I -
| Trade receivables 2 1
Lease liabilities created consequent 1o the ROU Ms. Nirupa Shankar 952 -
Ms. Pavitra Shankar 952 -

Trade payables Ms. Mirupa Shankar 150 -
Ms. Pavitra Shankar 150 -

Capital advance BHSL 76 -
WTC 14 -

BHSL - 147

Pl pontics PREPL = 0
BFOS ] []

WTC 0 29

BHSL 0 [i

BILLP 1 0

Trade receivables BPPL - 4
BFDS 1] 0

BGPPL 8 1

MHPL @ 2

MNotes:

1. The related party transactions are made on terms equivalent 1o those that prevail in am's length transactions, Outstanding balances as at
the balance sheet date are unsecured and scttlement ocours in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
party receivable or payable.

2. In respect of the transactions with the refated parties, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, and the details have been disclosed above, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

3. The salaries and allowances do not include pratuity and compensated absences cost as the same are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation made at company level.

4. "0 represents transactions and balances with amounts being less than Rs. 50,000,

Y. Other information:

Loan from related parties are unsecured and camies interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025, On July 1, 2020, the Company and its Holding
Company entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs 20,000 lakhs and repayable in quanterly instalments of Rs. 1,000
lakhs each from June 2025 to March 2030. The existing loan payable of Rs.11,274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs.9,881 lakhs and
Interest payable - Rs.1,393 lakhs) was converted into interest-free loan as part of the aforesaid agreement. The Company has drawn loan of
Rs.5,016 lnkhs during the period July 27, 2020 to March 31, 2021 and Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 to March 31, 2023, The
Comp has ac ted the aft id loan, being interest-free in nature, as compound financial instruments in accordance with Ind AS 32 with
effective micrest rate of [2%.

30 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of hospitality. The Board of Directors being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the
Company’s perfo ce and allk resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. All operating sepments
operating results are reviewed regularly by CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance,
CODM belicves that these are governed by same set of risks and returns hence, CODM reviews them as one component. Hence, there are no
additional disclosures 1o be provided under Ind-AS 108 — Segment information with respect to the single reportable segment, other than those
already provided in the panying dalone fi ial statements, Further, the Company is domiciled in India and the Company’s current and
non-current assets are located in India. There is no identifiable major ini the C who is contributing more than 10% of revenue,
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3

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is o
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s prineipal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior ﬁanagcn‘r:m oversees the management of these
risks and ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives,

i Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises of: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily lo the Company’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates, The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced porifolio of fixed and variable rate loans
and borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the entity’s profit/(loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of non-current and current borrowings and other current and non
current financial liabilities.

Change in Effect on
Particulars interest rate | loss before tax
March 31, 2025 vy s
-1% (386
March 31, 2024 bl e
1% (404)

b) Currency risk

Foreigm currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates arises on account of purchases from foreign countries, The Company
has not taken any derivative instrument during the year and there is no derivative instrument outstanding as at the year end.

The Company’s unhedged foreign currency exposure at the end of the year is as below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables 354 258
354 258

Note: There is no significant exposure to the Company towards foreign exchange fluctuation.

¢) Price risk

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. The Company’s management has developed and enacted a risk
management strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation, The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected
to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s
exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets are bank deposits with banks and hence, the Campany does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

With respect to other financial assets, the Company has constituted teams 1o review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary
mitigations, wherever required. The Company applics the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
losses on trade receivables and unbilled revenue. The Campany follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade
receivables wherein, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. At the balance sheet date, there was no
significant concentration of credit risk and exposure thereon.

jii. Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of borrowings and lease
contracts. The Company has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Maturity period March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities - Current

Current borrowings - term loans from banks Within 1 year 7,336 7,180
Current borrowings - loans from related parties Within | year 4,000 -
Current borrowings - bank overdrafi Within | year 3388 -
Trade payables Within 1 year 3438 2615
Lease liabilities Within | year 172 -
Other financial liabilities Within | year 2,100 2,640

Financial liabilities - Non Current

Non-Current borrowings - term loans from banks Between 1-10 years 47,289 54,161
Non-Current borrowings - loans from related parties Between 1-10 years 13,760 17,790
Lease liabilities Between 1-30 years 41,539 19,560

Other financial liabilities Between 1-3 years - 185
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32 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
The Company operates defined gratuity plan for its employees. Under the plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each compleied year of service.
The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amount recognised in the balance sheet
with respect to gratuity. The defined benefit plan is unfunded, excepi as otherwise stated.

Changes in the defined benefit obligation ("DBO") and fair value of plan assets ('FVaPA') - Year ended March 31, 2025

Fxpenne chaE.t: % profit or Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
= R Actuarial n al Contribu-
Gratuity Opening Sub-total | Benefits ass:;r;::;:l{?: CHp cha uui::ilsin Epocis: | Ak i (e
* | balance | Service | Interest | included | paid E | arising from nEes B nee | included by balance
4 amounts included ¥ from changes 3 =
cost | expense | in profit ; : changes in : =7 | adjustm- in employer
in met interest in financial
or loss e demographic it enls 0cCl
P assumptions i P
DBO 115 42 B 50 {19) = (7 15 39 47 - 193
FVol'A - - - - (12) 2 - - 2 49 39
Net 115 50 45 (49) 154
linbility
Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan asseis ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2024
Fapeuse CME::' Wi Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
R Actuarial Actuarial Contribu-
Giratait Opening Sub-total | Benefits “m:r(“;lrd:: changes ch c.:a;’_:si Experie- | Sub-total | tions | Closing
¥ | balance | Service | Interest | included |  paid g arising from 8 "8 pee included by balance
3 amounts included from changes %
cost | expense | in profit " 1 changes in 2 adjustm- in employer
in net interest . in financial
or loss demographic 2 ents ocl
expense) : assumptions
assumptions
DBO 31 6 37 (13) - (3) 2 6 5 - 115
FVoPA - - - - - - - . - - .
Net 31 6 37 (13) - (3 2 6 5 Z 115
liability
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations are shown below:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Iﬂsmum rale (per annum}) £.6% 7.1%
Salary rate (per annum) 6.7% 7.4%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012{ 100% of IALM 2012-2014
2014
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as shown helow:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assumptions Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate Diseount Rate Salary Growth Rate
Sensitivity Level =1% + 1% ~1% + 1% -1% + 1% -1% + 1%
Impact on DBO 45 (30) {30)) 45 6 () (4)
% change compared to base 2% -20% -20% 29% 5% -3% 3% 5%
due to sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable chanpes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on on discounted cashflows) - 5 years
The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within the next 12 months 46 39
Between 1 and 5 years 130 63
More than 5 vears £l [
Total expected payments 257 170

Expected contributions 1o the defined benefit plan asset (investment in insurance fund) for the next annual reporting period is Rs. 29 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil)

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Company is
exposed 1o various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit, the most significant of which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk - The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing
the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability,

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of sufficient cash/eash
equivalents 1o meet the liabilities.

Salary Fscalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is caleulated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future, Deviation
in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan panticipants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing
on the plan's liability,

Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual
experience turning out fo be worse compared to the assumption.
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33 Fair values
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used 1o estimate the fair values:

i) The management assessed that the carrving values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair values largely due to their shori-term maturities.

ii) The management assessed that the carrying values of bank deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilitics approximate their fair values
based on cash flow discounting using parameters such as inferest rates, tenure of instrument, ¢reditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of
the financed project, as applicable

These finaneial assets and financial labilities are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs as explained
above, There have been no transfers between levels during the year. The investment in equity of subsidiary is measured at cost

Set out below, is a comparison by elass of the earrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Value (Level 3) Value (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Measured at amortised cost
Investment in debentures 93 93 312 i
Trade receivables 1,849 1,849 1,654 1,654
Cash and cash equivalents 1,062 1,062 675 675
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,159 1,159 1,228 1,228
Other financial assets 1,307 1,307 890 890
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amartised cost
Borrowings 55715 55,715 52,695 52,695
Trade payables 3,438 3,438 2615 2615
Lease liabilities 13,897 13,897 11,834 11,834
Other financial liabilities 2,100 2,100 1,825 2,825

34 Capital management

The Company’s objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the return 1o sharcholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets 1o reduce debt. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in
light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company menitors capital using a geaning ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.

- Equity represents total equity of the Company

- Net Debt includes borrowings (non-current and current), trade payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and

bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

|Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Borrowings 55,715 52,695
Trade payables 3,438 2,615
Lease liailities 13,897 11,834
Other financial liabilities 2,100 2,825
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (3,221) (1,903)
Net Debt (A) 72,929 68,066
Equity share capital 28,143 100
Instruments entirely equity in nature - 28,043
Other equity (15,328) (16.965)
Equity (B) 12,815 11,178
Equity plus netdebt (C=A+B) 85,744 79244
Gearing ratio (D=A /C) 85% 86%

In order 1o achieve the objective of maximizing shareholders value, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the financial
covenants would allow the bank to call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of above mentioned interesi-bearing borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years.
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35 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Rs.
The principal amount remaining unpaid 1o any supplier 207 92
The amount of interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier - -
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amount of the payments - -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day.
The amount of interest due and payable for the pened of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day duning the year)
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable for the carlier years, e =
207 92

Note: The above information is furnished based on the information available with the Company.

36 The Company has defined process to take daily back-up of books of account in electronic mode on servers physically located in India. However, the
backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to individual hotel unils of the Company has not
been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis.

Further, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughowt the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software, except that audil irail feature is not
enabled for certain chanpes, if any, made using privileged administrative access rights 10 the SAP §/4 HANA application and the underlying database
and in respect of individual hotel units of the Company wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year.
Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the relevant prior vear has not been preserved by the Company as per the statuiory requiremenis for record

retention.

The management is taking steps to ensure that the books of account are maintained as required under the applicable statute.

37 Financial ratios
a. Ratio Current mtio
Numerator Curmrent assels
Denominator Current liabilities
As at
sl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current assets (A) 8,152 5,899
Current liabilities (B) 18,163 10,666
Current ratio (C) =(A) / (B) .45 0.55
“Yochange from previous year -19%
b. Ratio Debt equity ratio
Numerator Total debt [represents current and non-current borrowings and lease liabilities]
Denominator Shareholders’ equity [represents total equity]
As at
ol Msneomer March 31,2035 | Wiarch 31, 2024
Total debt (A) 69,612 -64,529
Shareholder's equity (B) 12,815 11,178
Debt equity ratio (C )= (A)/ (B) 5.43 577
% Change from previous year 6%
c. Ratio Debt service coverage ratio
Numerator Eamings available for debt service
Denominator Debt service
As at
Bt Mrmures March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/(loss) after tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
Depreciation and Amontisation expense (B) 4275 3,604
Finance costs (C) 6,571 6,041
Earnings available for debt services (D) = (APHB}HC ) 12,518 11,505
Finance costs (E) 6,571 6,041
Repayment of non=ctirrent borrowings (F) 1,676 5514
Debt service (H) = (E ) + (F) 10,247 11,555
Debt service coverage ratio (1) = (D ) /{H) 1,22 1.00
(Fellmnge from previous vear 23%




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indinn Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

d  Ratio Trade receivables tumover ratio
Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average trade receivables

As at

N Meas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations (A) 40,353 34,30
Closing Trade Receivables 1,849 1,654
Average Trade Receivables [(opening + closing) 2] (B) 1,752 1,669
Trade receivables turnover ratio (C ) = (A) / (B) i 23.04 20.55
% Change from previous year 12%

¢ Ratio Trade payables turnover raiio
Numerator Total purchases
Denominator Averape rade payables

As at

SN St March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Total purchases * (A) 18,793 15,588
Closing Trade Payables 3438 2,615
Average Trade Payables [(opening + closing) /2] (B) 3,027 2,830
Trade payables turnover ratio (C) = (A) / (B) 6.21 5.51
% Change from previous year 13%

*Total Purchase represents purchase of goods and services which is the aggregate of cost of materials consumed and other expenses

f Ratio Net capital wmover ratio
Numerator Revenue [rom operations
Denominator Working capital {Current assets - Current liabilities)
As at
SN ARt March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations (A) 40,353 34,301
Working capital (B) (10,011) (4,767)
Net capital turnover ratio (C ) = (A) (B) (4.03) (7.20)
“aChange from previous year “44%
Note: The ratio has changed mainly due 1o increase in revenue from operations in the current year and change in working capital during the year.
g Ratio Met profit ratio
Numerator Profit after tax
Denominator Revenue from operations
As al
Raion Yicavees March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Profit{loss) afler tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Revenue from operations (B) 40,353 34,301
Net profit (C ) =(A)/(B) 0.04 0.05
% Change from previous year 24%
h  Ratio Retum on capital employed
Numerator Eaming before interest and taxes
Denominator Capital Employed (Total equity, Total borrowings and Total lease liabilities)
As at
A SN March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Adjustments
Add: Total tax expense (B) 1516 722
Add: Finance costs (C) 6,371 6,041
Earnings before interest and tax (D) = (A) + (B} + (C) 9,759 8,623
Total equity (E) 12,815 11,178
(Current and Non-current borrowings (F) 53,715 52,695
Current and Non-current lease liabilities (G) 13,897 11,834
Capital Employed (H) = (E) + (F) +(G) 82,427 75,707
Return on capital employed (1) = (D) / (H) 0.12 011
YeChange from previous year 4%




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

i Ratio Return on equity ratio
Numerator Profit after tax
Denominator Average Shareholder’s Equity

As at

bt March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit afier tax (A) 1,672 1,860
Closing sharcholder’s equity (B) 12,815 11,178
Average sharcholder's equity [(opening + closing) 2] (C) 11,997 10,246
Return on equity (D) = (AWC ) 0.14 018
% Change from previous year 13%

i Ratio Inventory tumaver ratio
Numerator Cost of goods sold
Denominator Average inventory

As at

Ratios/ Measures March 31, 2025 March 31, 2004
Cost of goods sold (A} 3.977 3,580
Closing Inventory (B) 613 532
Average inventory [(opening + closing) /2](C ) 573 461
Inventory turnover ratio (D) ={AMC ) 6,95 797
“wChange from previous year -11%

Note: The Company has accumulated losses of Rs, 22,078 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 23,715 lakhs) and total equity of Rs. 12,815 lakhs (March 31,
2024: Rs. 11,178 lakhs). The Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 10,011 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs, 4,767 lakhs). The
Company is in the initial phase of its operations and Brigade Enterprises Limited, the holding company, is commiticd 1o provide financial and
operational support 1o the Company for its profitable operations in the foresecable future:

38 Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial information
(i) There arc no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struek of under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956.
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction whicl is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory peried.

(i¥) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

{(v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from bormowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons ot entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalfof the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{vi) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Uliimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficianes.

{(vii) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. %

{viiii) The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, cxcept as otherwise stated)

39 Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 CIN: U74999KA2016PLCO95986

Vin erma
[Director
DIN: 06362115

Place; Bengaluru Ananda Natarajan
Date: April 18, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Com

Akanks




.S‘-R. BATL ’BO’ & ASSOC'ATES ’.LP }Séhtigel}:anberra Block

No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Chartered Accountants Bengaluru - 560 001, India

Tel : +91 80 6648 9000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to
as “the Group") comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit
including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consclidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Group. in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 27(b)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements, in connection with an ongoing litigation
relating to assessment of property tax. Pending ultimate outcome of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information. we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

A
o)L

5.R. Batiibol & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Reqd, OMfice : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B°, 3rd Floor, Kaolkata- 700 016
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
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= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary, whose financial
statements include total assets of Rs. 13,134 lakhs as at March 31, 2025, and total revenues of Rs. 6.527 lakhs and net
cash inflows of Rs. 218 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information
have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have
been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
such other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary, incorporated
in India, as noted in the ‘other matter” paragraph. we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

| % ]

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary, as noted in the ‘other matter’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation
of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports
of the other auditors, except for the matters stated in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements with respect
to the Holding Company that the backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in
electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Holding Company has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on daily basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph (j)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g).

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation ofthe consolidated financial statements;
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(d)

(e)

(g)

(h)

(i)

()

. A

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Group;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company. none of the directors of the Group's
companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31,2025 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2™ to this report;

The Holding Company and its subsidiary have not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence,
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and its
subsidiary for the year ended March 31, 2025;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on
separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiary, as noted in the *Other
matter’ paragraph:

i.  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position in its
consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
provision for material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary during the year ended March 31, 2025;

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors
of such subsidiary that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. as disclosed in note 35(v) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding
Company or its subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors
of such subsidiary that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 35(vi) to the consolidated
financial statements. no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or its subsidiary
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary shall, whether, directly or

directly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

LIS WY
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the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances

performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary which is incarporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain
any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid by the Holding Company or its subsidiary incorporated in India;

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the

subsidiary, which is a company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, the Group has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the accounting software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain
changes made, if any, using certain access rights and in respect of individual hotel units of the Holding
Company wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year,
as described in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. Further, during the course of audit, we and
the respective auditors of the above referred subsidiary did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software to the extent audit trail feature is enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the relevant prior year has not been preserved by the Holding
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated in Note 36 1o the consolidated
financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

[CAI Firm Registrati

Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sudhir K :—;‘" =
Partner ’f‘?,f‘:‘* """ '3.-:
Membership Number: 213157 Iy \\;a;; !
I & {Bengalure) @
UDIN: 25213157BMNZDP3232 \\ \ p i
Woas—%>7
Place: Bengaluru W o B

Date: April 18,2025 S
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements™ of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020
(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Sl Name CIN
No

Holding
Company/
Subsidiary

Clause number of
CARO report
which is qualified
or is adverse

Limited

1 Brigade Hotel Ventures U74999KA2016PLCO95986

Holding Company

vii (b) and xix

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

7 o ".r.: e
Membership Number: 213157 / /_\‘n \

g.t‘_;lE-:n[pIuru,ﬁ i\
Wl /

W\ Jog |
UDIN: 25213157BMINZDP3232 \ e, r_.:"'.;/l

, L

Place: Bengaluru e
Date: April 18, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group which are companies incorporated in India are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued
by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Group are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Group: and (3)
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have maintained in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note or*Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAL

Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to one subsidiary, which
is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountan
ICAI Firm Registraion Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sudhi Jain
Partner
Membershyp Number: 213157

UDIN: 25213157BMNZDP3232

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18, 2025




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet a5 at March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, exeept ns otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Nen-current assets
Propurty, plant and euuipment
Capital work in progress
Intangible nssets
Financial nssets

Investments

Chther non-current financial assels
Delerved tax assels (net)
Onher mop-curment assets
Current tax assels (net)
Sub tatal

Current assets
Inventories
Finaneial nssets
Trade reveivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank halances other than cash wind cash equivilents
Other current financial assets
Other current asseis
Sub total
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Okher equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
MNop-comtrolling imterests
Total cquity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Finaneral lisbilities
Borrwings
Lease labilities
Dther mon-current financial labilities
Onher non-vurment liabilities
Mon-curment provisions
Sub total
Current liabifities
Fineral liabilities
Borrowings
Lease labilities
Toucle payables
- Total mitstanding dues of micro ¢nterprises and small enterpriscs
= Total sutstanding dues of ereditors other than micro coteiprises and small enterprises
Dthver current Minancial habilivies
Onther current liahilitios
Current provisions
Sub total

Total equity and labilities

Summary of materisl scevunting policies

The sccompanying notes are an integeal part of the consofidated linancial statements
As pur our report of even dawe attnched

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountams
ICAI Firm regstration,

ber 107 049WE3O0004

per Sudl Juin
Farmer
Memhe . JN3L5T
PMlace: Bengalurn

Date: April I8, 20235

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
3.1 T2.969 65,082
4 2,017 7068
332 181 L
3 [ i
f 1,205 1.052
Tl R EES T.816
8 2,778 154
73 1,056 555
K5,965 81021
9 a7l 591
10 2300 2.176
111 1077 T8
11.2 1159 1228
6 975 287
A 2609 1.677
2792 6.757
24757 CXGN
121 38143 100
122 150 28.193
13.1 (19,6051 {21.589)
H688 B6.704
132 1,545 197
10,233 7.901
I4 49,339 54,013
% 13,937 11,534
15 M 209
17 Bn2 TR
16 155 19
64,327 67,943
14 12,393 5,206
28 #i -
I8
274 136
KT 250
15 ran 1
17 1383 (W
19 192 143
0,19 12.834
9-[.?5_‘.‘ B4.678
a1

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of

Vin

eel Vepflia
Director
D636 IS

Akaunksha
Compai.y

Ananda Nutarajon
Chief Financial Officer




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: U74999KA2016PLCO9S986

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, exeept as otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 26024
Income
Revenue from operations 19 46,825 40,170
Other income 20 243 3l5
Total income (i) 47,068 40485
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 2 4476 4034
Employee benefits expense 2 8,631 7616
Depreciation and amortizition expenses 23 4.980 4.364
Finance costs 24 7,250 688
Other expenscs 25 17.274 14.364
Total expenses (ii) 42,017 37,277
Profit before tax (i) = (i) - (i) 4451 3,208
Tax expense 72
Current tax. . .
Delerred tax charge 1.0835 4
Tutal tax expense (iv) 2,085 94
Profit for the yvear (v) = (iii) - {iv) 2,366 3114
Other comprehensive income
ltems ot 1o be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/{logs) on defined benefit plans (46) 9
Income tax elfect - credit (charge) 12 (2)
Other comprehensive income ('OCT") (vi) (34) 1
“Total comprehensive income for the year (vii) = (v} +{vi) 2,332 3.121
Profit for the vey tributable to:
Equity holders of the parent ' 2,019 2,487
Nom=Controlling intercsts 47 627
ot ¥ ILILE 'QCt' X i hle to:
Eguity halders of the parent (35) b
Non-Controlling mterests I I
T hensive i or th attribu
Equity holders of the parent 1,984 249
Non-Controlling interests kR H 28
Earnings per share ('EPS') attributable to equity holders of the Parcnt: 26
[nomisal value of share Rs.10 (March 31, 2024; Rs. 103]
Basic EPS (Rs.) 0.72 (.88
Dilutcd EPS (Rs.) 0.72 [1%.1.]
Summary of material accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes ar¢ an integral part of the consol idated financial statements.
As per our feport of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Associutes LLP For and on behalf of the Bourd of Directors of
Chantered Accountants Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
IC Al Firm registratigfnumber: 101049W/E300004 CIN: UT4999KA2016PLYTRS980

Vineet \'%

Director

DIN: nz:sn;_q/_,( DIN: 06362115
MW

per Sudhir
Partner
Membership no.: 2131537
Place: Bengaluru Ananda Natarajan
Date: Apnil 18, 20235 Chief Financial Officer




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999KA2016PLCIWSY86

Consolidated Statement of Cashfows for the year ened March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as stherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before mx 4451 3208
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 4.080 4,504
Reversal of impairment allowanee for bad and doubuful debis 20 (15 (59
Liabilities no longer required written back 20 25) -
Government Grants - Capital subsidy 20 116) (16)
{Profit)Loss on saic of property, plant and equipment 20,25 0 192
[nterest expense 4 7256 6,680
Interest income 20 (152) (192)
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,489 14,386
Maovements in working capital ©
(Dectease) / increase in trade payvables 1,103 (412)
{Decrease) / increase in other liabilities 42%) 70
(Deercase) / increase in provisions 4% 0
(Increase) / decrease in inventories {79 [155)
{Increase) / decrease in rade receivable (108) (48)
{Increase) / deerease in other assels (1.629) 1 480
Cash generated from operations 15396 15,591
Direct taxes (paid)/irefunds, net {501y (105}
Net eash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 14,895 15,486
Cash flows from investing activities
Putchase of property., plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) 31,324 19.474) {5.548)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment i 12
Redemption of bank deposits 867 1.609
Investiment in bank deposits (1.006) [LI]
Interest received 111 197
Net cash flow fror/(used in) investing activities (B) (9.499) (4.530)
Cash flows from financiag activities
Proceeds from bommowings 1832 11,569
Repayment of borrowings (4.718) (4314
Redemption of debentures 154) -
Interest pand (4.442) {4.787)
Payment of principal porion of lease Habilitics (103) (1,07
Payment of interest portion of lease linbilities (6494) (1602)
Net cash flow from/(nsed in) financing activities (C) (8.17%) (9,213)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + €) (1.783) 1.743
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of ihe yeur 395 (1.344)
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year (2.388) 395
Components of ¢ash and cash equivalents
Cush on hand an ki
Balunces with banks:
= in current agcounts 045 7ok
= in deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months 104 .
Cheques on hand | 3
Total cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 1.1 LO77 798
Less: Bank overdraft 14 {3.465) (d403)
Total cush and cash equivalents as per statement of cashflows {2.388) 395

Note: Refer note 11 for changes in liabilitics arising from finuncing activities and note 28 for non-cash investing and financing setivities pertaining to

right-of-use assets and lease lizhilities, respectively.

Summary of maicrial accounting policies 2.1
The nccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated finaneial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountant, {
ICAT Firm regisurati

number: 1O 1049W/E300004

Ana n&akﬁala rajan

Chief Finnncial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: Aprél 18, 2025




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

CIN: UT4999 A2 6PLCO9S986

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital No. of shares Amount
(in lakhs)
(refer note 12.1)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
As at April 01, 2023 1l o
Changes during the year - .
As at March 31, 2024 0 100
As at April 01, 2024 1} 1o
Changes during the vear 2,804 28,043
As at Mareh 31, 2025 2814 28,143
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature No. of shares Amount
{in lakhs)
{refer note 12,2
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, 100/~ each ("OCRPS’)
As at April 01, 2023 280 28,043
Changes during the vear - -
As at March 31, 2024 180 28.043
As at April 01, 2024 280 28,043
Changes during the year (28 [28.043)
As at March 31, 2025 - -
Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs, 180 each (CCPS)
As at April 01, 2023 2 150
Changes during the year 5 =
As ot March 31, 2024 r 150
As at April 01, 2024 F 150
Changes during the year 2 =
As ot March 31, 2025 2 150
C. Other cquiry
(reler note 13,1 and 11.2)
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent Non- Total
Capital | Revalnation | General|  Equity Retained | Sub toral | controlling
Reserve Reserve Reserve | component of | earnings iferests
Compound
Financial
Instruments
As at April 01, 2023 1 89 01 6,750 (31,7531 (24,082) 564 (235130
Prafit for the year - - - - 2487 24R7 w27 3114
Other comprehensive income - - - - b [ | 7
Tatal compreliensive income for the vear - - - - 2,493 2,493 b 3,121
As at March 31, 2024 1 824 91 6.750 (29.260) (21.589) 1,197 (20.392)
Asat April 01, 2024 1 829 21 6,750 (29.260)) (21,589) 1,197 (20,392)
Profit for the year - - - - 2019 2019 M7 2366
Other compreliensise income - - - - (35) 135) | (34)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 1.984 1,984 il 1,332
As al March 31, 2025 1 829 21 6,750 (27.276) (19.605) 1345 (18.060))
Summary of material accounting policics 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial sttements.
As per our report of even date sttached
For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Chartered Accountants Brigade Hotel Ventures Lingd
ICA] Firm registration oumber: 101049 W/ E300004 CRN: UT4999480 201 6PLCO9Y
pet Sudhi Jain Niru Vineet Vpfma
Partner Direetc Director
Membershigfno.: 243157 DIN: [1375“3}/ DIN: 06362115
Place: Bengaluru Ananda Natarajan \

Date: April 18, 2025 Chief Financial Officer




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited (CIN: U74999KA2016PLC095986) ('BHVL'
or the *Company” or the *Holding Company ) and its subsidiary (collectively, the Group). The Holding Company was incorporated on August 24,
2016 The registered office of the Company is located at 29th Floor & 30th floors. World Trade Center. Brigade Gateway Campus. 26/1. Dr Rajkumar
Road. Malleswaram-Rajajinagar. Bangalore 560 055. The Group is carrying on the hospitality business including running and managing hotels

The consolidated financial statements were approved for i1ssue n accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company on
April 18, 2025

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended, and presentation requirements of Division [1
of Schedule [11 to the Compamies Act. 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111). as applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period

The consolidated tinancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs). All the values are rounded ofT to the nearest lakhs. except when otherwise
indicated.

21 Summary of matenal accounting policies
a)  Basis of consohdation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary as at March 31. 2025, A subsidiary
15 an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group i1s exposed to. or has nights to. variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. A subsidiary is
fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group and are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Consolidation procedure:

1 The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Combine like items of assets, liabilities. equity. income. expenses and cash flows of the Holding Company with
those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and habilities
recognised in the consolidated linancial statements at the acquisition date.

i Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OC1) are attributed to the equity holders o' the parent of the Group and
10 the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made 1o the financial stalements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies mto line with the Group’s accounting policies. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

] Offset (ehminate) the carry ing amount of the Holding Company ‘s investment in the subsidiary and the Holding Company s portion ol equity
of such subsidiary

v Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities. equity. income, expenses and cash Mlows relating to transactions between entities of the
group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated
in full), Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

£ The financial statements of the subsidiary used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of"the Holding
Company. ie.. vear ended on March 3 | st and are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
cireumstances

Vi Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of the subsidiary 1s shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively

by Use of estimates

The preparation o' consolidated Hnancial statements in contormty with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments. estmates und assumptions
that alfect the reported amounts of revenues. expenses. assets and habilives and the diselosure of contingent lhabilities. at the end of the reporting
peniod. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requinng o matenal adjustment to the carrying umounts of assets or habilities. The efTect of change in an
accounting estimaie 1s recognized prospectively

) Current versus non-current classilication

The Group presents ussets and labilitics in the balance sheet based on current non-current classilication iyl




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

An asset 1s treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purposes of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purposes of trading

- It is due to be seutled within twelve months after the reporting period. or y

- There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months alter the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
evaluated and considered its operating cycle as one year and accordingly has reclassified its assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

Assets and liabilities. other than those discussed above. are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/ are contractually repavable
within one year from the Balance sheet date and as non-current. in other cases

Deterred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.
d)  Property. plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. net of accumulated impairment loss. ifany Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost. net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price. borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and
directly anributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price,

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately
This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals. the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when o major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property. plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benetits from its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment. including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o acquisition of property. plant and equipment which take substantial period of tme to get ready for its intended
use are also mcluded to the extent they relate to the perod till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under
other non-current assets.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property. plant and equipment is de-recognized,
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent

to which the expenditure s indirectly reluted to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred
during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged 10 the statement of profit and loss.

Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress
¢)  Depreciation on property. plant and equipment

Depreciation is caleulated on written down value basis using the following uselul lives estumated by the management. which are equal to those
prescribed under Schedule 11 1o the Companies Act. 2013

Category of Asset Useful lives (in yvears)
Buildings 6
Plant and machinery 13

Electrical installation and equipment 10
Furmiture and fixtures
e Used in hotels, restaurants. ete. 8
& (Others 10
Computer hardware

. End user devices 3
*  Server and network equipment 6
Oliee equipment 3
Motor vehicles 8




Brignde Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

For certain hotel-specific assets. depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the
management based on technical assessment as below:

Category of Asset Useful lives Schedule 11 lives
(in years) (in years)

Buildings 25-30 60
Plant and machinery 13 15
Electrical installation and eguipment 10 10
Furniture and fixtures

& Used in hotels. restaurants. etc 8 8

s (Others 10 10
Computer hardware

o End user devices 3 3

»  Server and network equipment 6 b
Office equipment 5 3
Motor vehicles 8 8

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. as follows:
Leasehold land — 23 1o 35 years

The management considers residual value at 3% as prescribed under Schedule 11 of Comparies Act. 2013,

The management believes that the above estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively. if appropriate.

) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recogmition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. if any

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a writien down value basis over a penod of six years. which is estimated by the
management to be the useful life of the asset. In case of certain hotels, the intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized on a straight-
line basts over a period of six years as estimated by the management

The residual values, uselil lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at cach financial yvear end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Gamns or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrymg
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset 15 derecognized.

g2) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and measures the required expected
credit losses through a loss allowance. The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL ) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses
on trade receivables, The Group follows the simplified approach for recogmition of imparrment allowance on trade receivables wherein. it recognises
impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the |1 2-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credst losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impared. If any indication exists. or when annual
impairment testing for an asset 15 required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
assel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds s recoverable amount. the asset 15 considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use. the
estimated [uture cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects current market assessments o the time value
ol money and the risks specific o the asset. In determining net selling price. recent market transactions are taken o account, i available. 11no such
transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model i1s used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of prolit and loss. Afier impairment, depreciation 15 provided on the revised carrving amount of the
assel over its remaining usetul lite

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. 1f such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGL"s recoverable amount. A previously recogmised impairment loss 1s
reversed only if" there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recogmsed, The reversal 1s limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount. nor exceed the carying amount




Brigade Hotel Yentures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

that would have been determined. net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

h}  Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Where the Group 15 lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease labilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets,

The Group at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (Roll ) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, except for leases with
term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets. The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement
of'the lease liability. any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received.
Subsequently. the right of-use assets are measured at cost less any aceumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany The right-of-
use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception. the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date, The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. if that rate is readily determined. if that rate is not readily determined. the lease
payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance lixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, vaniable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and pavments of
penalties for terminating the lease. if’ the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

The Group recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying amount of
the right-of-use assets 15 reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability. the Group recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i . those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on 4 straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Where the Group 15 lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases,
Rental income anising is aceounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direet costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating

lease e added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

1}y Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the ucquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged o statement
of profit and loss

J)  Inventories

Inventones comprising ol food. beverages and other items are valued ot lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories is determined on a
weighted average basis

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and estimuted costs necessary
to make the sale.

k) Revenue recognition
Revemue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers 1s recognised when control of the goods or services are transterred to the customer ul an amount that rellects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services Revenue 1s measured based on the transiaction
price. which is the consideration. adjusted for discounts and other credits. it any. as specified in the contract with the customer. The Group presents
revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in iis statement ol profit and loss

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contraet that are separate performance obligations 1o which a portion of the transuetion
price needs to be allocated In determining the transaction price, the Group considers the effects of varable consideration. the existence of sigmificant
financing components. noncash consideration, and consideration pavable to the customer. i any
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The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from hospitality services
Revenue from hospitality operations comprise revenue trom room charges, food & beverage sales, facility usage charges and allied services, including
telecommunication. laundry. ete, Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered and is disclosed net of allowances

Contract balances
Contract asset is the nght to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or serviees to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration

that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the passage of tme 15 required before
payment of the consideration 15 due).

Contract hability 1s the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If @ customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract.

Income from lease rentals
Refer accounting policy under “Leases™ above.

Interest inconte

Interest income. including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost, is recognized using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period. where appropriate. to the gross camrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash Nows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment. extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established. which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

1} Foreign currency translation

Functional and presemation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (“the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency

Foreign currency fransactions and balances

1) Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the tunctional currency spot rate at the date the transaction first qualilies
tor recognition.

i) Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing ot the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which
are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency. are reported using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction. Non-
monetary items. which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency. are translated using the exchange rate
at the date when such value was determined.

iii) Exchange differences - The Group accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as
income or as expense in the period in which they arise. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of'the gain or loss on the change in fur value of the item (i.¢.. translation differences on items whose thir value gain or loss
is recognised in OCI or profit or |oss are also recognised in OC1 or profit or loss. respectively)

m)  Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund. Employee State Insurance and Emplovee Pension Fund Schemes are
defined contribution schemes {collectively the *Schemes’). The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the Schemes. The Group
recogmizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure. when an employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of
amount due 1s recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount paid 15 recognized as a liability

Grawnty. which is a defined benetit plan. is scerued based on an independent actuanal valuation, which 1s done based on project unit credit method as
at the balance sheet date. The Group recognizes the net obligation of a detined benefit plan in its balance sheet asan asset or liability. Gans and losses
through re-measurements of the net defined benefit Liability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive mcome. Remeasurements. comprising of
actuarial gans and losses. excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability. are recognised immediately in the balunce
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCI i the period in which they oceur Remeasurements are not reclassitied to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net detined benelfit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
B Service Costs COMPrSINg CUrment service Costs, past-service costs. gins and losses on curtalments and non-routine settlements. and
P Interest expense




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indiun Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months. as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes
Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method. made at the end of cach
financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss. The Group presents the accumulated leave liability as o
current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months afier the reporting
date.

n}  Income axes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense und the net change in the deferred tax asset or lability during the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate (o items that are recognized in other comprehensive
mncome or directly in equity. in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively

1. Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 1axation authorities based
on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

. Delerred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or lability in
@ transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction

Deterred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tay asset
1o be recovered,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or subsiantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set ofT' current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tx liabilities relate w income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either 1o settle current tax |iabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the ssets and settle
the linbilities simultaneously. in each future period i which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expeclted to be settled or
recovered.

o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision 1s recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal ar constructive) as a result of past event. it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required w settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. [f
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropriate, the risks specific
1o the liability. When discounting 1s used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be contirmed only by the occurrence or non-
oceurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that 1s not recognized because it
15 not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent linbility also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize 3 contingent lability but discloses
it 1n the consoliduted financial statements. unless the possibility of an outtlow of resources embody ing economic benefits is remote

pr Government grants
Government grants are recogmsed where there 15 reasonable assurance that the grant will be recerved. and all anached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates 1o an expense item. it is recognised as income on a systemanic basis over the periods that the reluted costs, for which it is

intended to compensate. are expensed When the grant relates 1o an asset. it is recognised as income 10 equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset

4)  Fmancial [nstruments
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Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Financial assets are initially measured

at

fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories.

YWVYY

i,

In

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt mstruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT) (debt instruments)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt istruments included within the FVTOC category are measured initially as well as at cach reporting date at fuir value. For debt instruments,
at fair value through OCT, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss
and computed in the same manner as for financial assels measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCl
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at Far value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irmevocably
elected 1o classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been established.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments})

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classifv irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
and loss when the right af payment has been established. except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recavery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case. such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial ussets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows. and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and imerest (SPPL) on the
principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into aceount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

o ;
vestment in subsidiary 1s carmed at cost. Impairment recognized. ifany. is reduced from the carrying value.
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De-recognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a)  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b)  The Group has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material detay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement. and either () the Group has transterred substantially all the nsks
and rewards of the asset, or () the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has
transferred control of the asset.

B Financial liabilit
Imitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or us payables,
as appropriate. The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial labilities are classified in two categories:

7  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
»  Financal liabilites at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term, Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profitor loss.

ii.  Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest{“EIR") method Gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss

Imerest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

9 - financi s
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lizbility is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing tinancial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

€. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and habilities on initial recognition. Afier inital recognition. no reclassification is made for
linancial gssets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments. a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

D.Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offser and the net amount is reported in the bulance sheet if there is a currently entorceable legal right o
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net hasis. to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

E. Fuir val i

The Group measures its financial instruments such as derivative mstruments. ete at tair value at cach balance sheet date. Fair value is the price thit
would be received to sell an asset or puid to ransfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transter the liability takes place either:

# Inthe principal market for the asset or liability. or
# Inthe absence of'a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fiair value of an assctor a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or hability . assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest A fiir value measurement of a non-tinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the assetin its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use

Al assets and habilities for which finr value s measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the far value
hierarchy. deseribed as ollows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the Fur value measurement s a whole

~  Level | - Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities £
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# Level 2 - Valuation techmgues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable
=~ Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valug measurement is unobservable.

For assets and habilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

r}  Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attnbuiable 1o equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are
entitled to participate in dividends relative 1o o fully paid equity share during the reporting peried, The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a

corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share. the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s)  Cashand cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments. which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. to be cash equivalents.

For the purpose of the consohidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. as defined above. net
of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

1) Cash dividend to equity holders of the Holding Company

The Holding Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Holding Company when the distribution 15 authorized
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Holding Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval
by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors.

22 Significant accounting judgments. estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues. expenses. assets and liabifities. and the acGrouping disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods

In the process of applying the Group’s secounting policies, management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which have the most significani
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The key judgment, estimates and assumptions concerming the future and
other key sources ol estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, which have a sigmficant risk of’ causing a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts
ol assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its judgments and assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments. however. may
change due to market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumplions when
they occur

Significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions used by management are as below
Deefineed benefit plans — Gratwiry

The cost of the defined benefit gramnty plan and the present value of the gramnty obligation are determined usmg actuanal valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount
rate. future salary increases and moriality rates Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature. a defined benefit obligation
15 highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change 15 the discount rte. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rales of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those monality ables end o
change only al interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are bused on expected tuture intlation rates and expected salary
inerease thereon

Usefirl life amed vesidual value of properiv. plant and equipiment and intangible assers
The usetul lifie and residual value of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined based on evaluation made by the management
of the expected usage of the asset. the physical wear and tear and technical or commereial obsolescence of the asset. Dug to the judgments involved m

such estimates the useful e and residual value are sensitive to the octual usage in future penod.

Evaluation of control, joint control or stemificant mfluence by the Group over s investee ennn' for disclostre
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Judgment is involved in determining whether the Group has control over an investee entity by assessing the Group’s exposure/rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and its ability to affect those retumns through its power over the investee entity. The Group considers all facts
and cireumstances when assessing whether it controls an investee entity and reassess whether it controls an investee entity if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control. In assessing whether the Group has joint control over an investee the Group assesses
whether decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Further. in assessmg whether Group has
significant influence over an investee. the Group assesses whether it has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
invesiee, but is not in control or joint control of those policies

Measurement of financial instriments ar amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR”) method, The computation of amortized cost 15
sensitive 1o the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected hife of the financial instrument. Changes in
assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or afier April D1, 2024
The Group has not early adopted any standard. interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is nol yet effective,

(1) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of corporate AfTairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after Apnl 01, 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement.
presemation and disclosure. Ind AS |17 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts, Ind AS 117 applies to all types of msurance contracts, regardless of
the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. a few scope
exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the
nature of msurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(ii) Amendment 1o Ind AS |16 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules. 2024, which amend Ind AS 116. Leases, with respect to
Lease Liabulity in a Sale and Leasehack.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, 1o ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains,

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Office
Freehold Lmhnidl 3 Plant & Electrical Office  “TWF Computer  Motor  Furniture
land rd(ROU Bulldlags  oechinery inssallstion cquipment ™™  pardware vehicles &fatures 1O
Assets)* (ROU
Assets)*
Cost
At April 01, 2023 3.807 5,729 63,313 12,023 5418 6,386 - 1,392 196 16,947 115211
Additions - 6.000 311 90 31 240 - 34 - 226 6,932
Disposals - = 1360} {112y 12) {162) - (9) - [87) (732)
At March 31, 2024 3.807 11,729 63.264 12.001 5447 6,464 - 1,417 196 17,086 121,411
Additions 75 1,790 6418 9lb 949 833 334 232 14 1.274 12,8335
Disposals - - - (7 (115) (231) - (29) (1R F] 120) (413)
At March 31, 2025 _3@2 IEI‘) 69I682 12,910 GIEI T@ 334 Eﬂ 199 ISJ-H] I.lgiﬂ_.'g
Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 - 63l 18,308 I57 4,018 5755 - 1,235 136 14,697 52,537
Charge for the year - 181 2135 641 331 394 - 109 15 613 4,320
Disposals - - (192) (89) 12) 1 156) - (%) - (81) {528)
At March 31, 2024 - 812 2%‘51 yue -Iﬁl 5&?_4 - laﬁ 151 [Sgl') 26&2‘)
Charge for the year - 422 32328 622 392 373 83 8l 13 719 4,930
Disposals - - - (5) (109) (223) - (29) 1] (19) (395)
At March 31, 2025 - 1.234 22,476 8.926 4,630 6,044 B3 1,388 154 15,929 60.864
Net book value
At March 31,2024 Jéﬂ'.r' 10,917 43,013 3,692 1,100 570 - 81 45 1&3? 65,082
At March 31, 2025 JIBSZ IEE_S 4'?.2[?6 jﬂJ ml 1,022 251 2_32 45 h:l_l 1 T1|969

Capitalised borrowing costs

Refer note 4 for details of capitalised borrowing costs.

Assets under construction

Refer note 4 for details ol capital work in progress

Assets pledged

Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings,

Assets leased
* Represents Right-of-use assets. Also refer note 28 for details

¥, I

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Holding Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) included in property. plant and equipment are held in the name of the Holding Company,

The propenty. plant and equipment of the Holding Company include land, buildings and other assets with a gross carrving value of Rs. 35,168 lakhs, which were
acquired by the Holding Company from its Ultimate Parent Company - Brigade Enterprises Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the Holding
Company and its Ultimate Parent Company and their respective shareholders and creditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 10 233 of the Companies Act,
2013 1o transfer the hotel business undertakings, including the aforesaid land, buildings and other assets. to the Holding Company {hereinafier referred to as “the
Scheme”'). The Scheme was approved by National Company Law Tribunal {"NCLT") on March 13, 2018 with an appointed date of October 01, 2016 and was filed
with the Regisirar of Companies. Karnataka on April 01,2018
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

3.2 Intangible Assets

Computer
Soft:a re Tol
Cost
At April 01, 2023 940 940
Additions . .
Disposals - .
At March 31, 2024 940 940
Additions 143 143
Disposals . .
At March 31, 2025 1,083 1,083
.
Amortization
At April 01, 2023 808 808
Charge for the vear 4 RR]
Disposals » .
At March 31, 2024 852 B32
Charge for the year S0 50
Disposals = 3
At March 31, 2025 902 902
Net book value
At March 31, 2024 88 88
At March 31, 2025 181 181
4 Capital work in progress
Prnpen;}r Plant Total
and Equipment
At April 01, 2023 1,939 1939
Additions during the vear 4,636 4,636
Less: Capitalised during the vear 1407) {407)
At March 31, 2024 7.168 7.168
Additions during the year 5,569 5,569
Less: Capitalised during the vear {10.710) (10,710}
Al March 31, 2025 2.027 2,027
Capital work in progress ageing schedule
Amount in Capital work in progress for the period of Total
<] Year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears >3 years
At March 31, 2025
Projects i progress 1.556 230 15 236 2,027
Projects temporanly suspended - - - - -
Total 1,556 220 15 236 2027
At March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 4448 $03 e 2240 7.168
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - .
Total 4,448 403 77 2.2400 T.168
Noies:

1. The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs, 237 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 165 lakhs) and
the capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 9-10%, pa

2. Refer note 14 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings
3. There are no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to s onginal plan




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

5 Non-Current Investments

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unquoted

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Tnvestment i eqreny sharey

55,655 (March 31, 2024 - §3,655) Equity Shares of' 210/- each fully paid up in Aban Green Power Privase [ 6
Limited*

Investments carried at amortised cost
Tirvestment m Cioverniment  Trist sécnriies
=National Savings Certificate®® = .

Total Investments 6 3
a) Aggregate book value market value of quoted investments = .
b) Aggregate value of unquoted investmenis 6 6

e} Ageregate amount of impairment in value of investments * "

*The subsidiary has invested in an energy generating company as per the regulation of Electricity Act. As per share holder agreement entered into by the subsidiary,
the shares are required to be transferred back at cost. Accordingly, the cost of investment represents the fair value of the investments and hence the cost equals the
Fair value.

**Represents Rs.5.000 as investment in Nattonal Savings Certificate

6 Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Non-cirrent Current
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Muargin money deposils with banks* 651 647 - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of more than 12 months 441 53 - -
Security deposit 5 58 149 735 42
Interest acerued L] 3 0 70
Unbilled revenue - - 170 175
1,205 1,052 975 287

*Margin money deposits have been made 1owards borrowings. letter of credit and bank guarantee fucilities availed by the Group from banks. Refer note 14 for
details of deposits pledged as security for borrowings.

| ,. \35




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Income tax
7.1 Deferred tax

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred by lubilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 2398 2529
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting
Right of use assets 3155 3,179
Impact relating 1o compound financial instruments 971 1388
Gross deferred tax linbilities 6,524 7,296
Dheterred tax ussels
Unused tax losses B214 11,065
Lease liabilities 3329 3,761
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current vear and allowed for tax purposes ina 136 286
subsequent year on payment basis
Impact of zccounting for financial instruments at amontized cost 388 -
Giross deferred tax assets 12,267 15,112

Net deferred tax assets
Notes:

5,743 7.816

The Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘the Ordinance’) provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower rate of 23.17% instead
of the normal rate of 29.12% (as applicable to the Holding Company |, if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Holding Company
has made an assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and has decided 1o opt for the lower tax rate of 25 17%. Consequently, deferred tax charge for year ended

March 31. 2025 is higher by Rs. 938 lakhs

The unused tax losses towards business loss [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 825 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2,582 lakhs)] can be carried forward for 2 maximum period
of eight financial years immediately succeeding the financial year in which the loss was first computed and would expire, if not utilised, starting from financial vear
2029-2030. Further. the unused tax losses towards unabsorbed depreciation [Deferred tax assets of Rs. 7,389 lakhs (March 31. 2024: Rs.8.483 |akhs)| can be carried

forward for an indefinite period.

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net)

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balunee 1816 7912
Deferred tax recogmsed in profit or loss (2.085) (94)
Deferred tax recogmised in OCI 12 (2)
Closing balance of deferred tax assets (net) 5,743 7.816
Bhcommant ves st s i fout o e APHOL, 20 sisementprofivor | OC | Omurensty  March 31,2024
ended March 31, 2024 N e i ‘
(a) Deferred tax liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and intungible assets- 2315 214 . - 159
Impact of difference between 1ax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial
Right of use assets 1485 1,694 - - 317
Impact relating to compound financial instruments 1572 (384) - - |.588
3,072 1.524 - - 7.296
(b) Deferved tax assets
Unused tax losses 11,251 1186) - - 11,065
Lease liabilities 1,966 1,795 B - 3.761
Impact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of profit 467 (179 12) 286
and loss in the current vear and allowed for tax
purposes in a subsequent vear on pavment basis
13,684 1,430 12) - 15,112
Net deferred tax assets (b) - (a) 7,912 (94) {2) - 7.816




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the year ‘::: : ?:] l;;;: ’u?:;:?":l:: ;,I: or nﬁm(g;;d " mn‘:t:“:l \::.r}::i‘: a;l:ll*
ended March 31, 2025 X = e ) =
(i) Deferred tax linbilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- 2,529 (131) - o 2,598
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the [inancial
reporting
Right ol use assets 307 (24 - - 3,135
Impact relating to compound financial instruments 1,588 (617) - - 971
7,296 (772 - - 6524
(h) Deferred tax asscts
Unused 1ax |osses 11,065 12,851) - - 8114
Lease Labilities 3.761 (232) - - 3529
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit 286 (162) 12 - 136
and loss in the current period and allowed for tax
purposes in o subsequent period on payment basis
Impact of accounting for financial mstruments at - 388 - - 388
amortized cost
15,112 (2.857) i - 12,267
Net deferred tax assets (b) - (a) 7816 (2,085) 12 - 5,743
7.2 Tax expense
The mujor components of income 1ax expense are
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit or Loss section
Current tax
Current income tax charge -
Deferred tax credit
Relating to onigination and reversal of temporary differences 1085 4
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss 1085 94
0OC1 Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT during the year
Income tax relating to re-measurement {gains ) losses on defined benefit plans 12 12)
Income tax (expense)eredit reported in OCI 12 2}
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 4,451 3,208
Statutory income tax rate
Tax at statutory income fax rate 25 17% (March 31, 2024: 29.12% / 27.82%) 1.120 926
Tax effect on recognition of unrecognised 1ax loss in subsidiary - 1802)
Tax effect due to change in raie 938 .
Tax effect of other items, net 27 (30)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 2,085 94
7.3 Current tax assets (net)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax assets (net) 1,056 535
1056 555
8 Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Non=current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balanees with smtutory © government authorites 103 s 617 8493
Advance to suppliers - - 47 47
Capital advances 2,666 68 - =
Prepand expenses 9 0 1610 4494
Advance 1o employees “ - in 3
Other assets & - 5 -
37718 154 2,609 1,677

9 Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages
Stores and spares

For detls of imventones pledged as secunty for borrowings retier ng

Marech 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

619 §23
52 b8
671 591




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

I Trade receivables

(unsecured)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables - considered good

Receivables from related parties (refer note 29) 46 36

Receivables from others parties 3355 2,120
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Receivables from others parties 55 70
Total trade receivables 2,356 2,246
Impairment allowance tallowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Receivables from others parties 155) (703
Total trade receivables 2,301 2,176
Note: Refer note 14 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings
a. Details of provision for impairment is as below: March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 70 129

Less: reversal during the year (15) 139)

Balance at the end of the year 55 70
b. Trade receivables ngeing schedule:
Particulars Ogs_timlinz for the following periods from due date of payment

<6 months| 6 months- 1-2 years 1-3 years >3 Years Total
1 year

March 31, 2025
Undisputed, considered sood 2,070 7 - - - 2,077
Undisputed, credit impaired . 5 7 13 |5 - 40
Disputed, considered good - - = 4 224
Disputed. credit impaired - - - - 15 15
Total 1,075 14 13 15 239 2,336
March 31, 2024
Undisputed, considered good 1.928 24 - - - 1,952
Undisputed, credit impaired . 8 43 4 - 55
Disputed, considered good - - . . 24 224
Disputed, credit impaired - . . 15 15
Total 1,928 32 43 4 139 2.246
Motes:

|. Trade receivable are non interest benring and are due from the date of transactions.
2 The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables. The Group follows the
simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Group to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognised during the vear i recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses/other income” in

the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
3, Trade receivable include receivable due from directors and other related parties

Particulars

March 31, 2025

Murch 31, 2024

WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ['WTC']
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited ['BHSL']
Brigade Innovations LLP ['BILLP']

Brigade Properties Private Limited|'BPPL]

Brigade Gujarat Projects Private Limited |BGPPL'|
Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited |'BFOS]
Mysore Holdings Private Limited ['"MHPL']

SRP Gears Pvi Lid ['SRP Gears'|

Brigade Enterprises Limited ['BEL'|

Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited [PREPL)
Subramanvam Engineering Limited | 'SEL'|




Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al

1.2

amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)
Cash and cash equivalents
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Cash on hand 7 2
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 945 768
- in deposit accounts with original matunty less than 3 months 104 =
Chegues on hand | 3
1.077 798
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
N 4 c ¢ Interest accrued
Particulars L:"{ut““ b r:ar:m and not due on Total
RO ™ e horrowings
Balance as at April 01, 2023 50,105 13,145 2 63,252
Cash inllows 11,569 . o 11,569
Cash outflows (14.314)] - i (14,314)
Accrual of finance cost (other than interest on lease liability) - - 6,126 6,126
Interest paid (other than interest on lease liability ) - - (4.787) 14.787)
Accrual of interest 1,335 . (1.335) -
Bank overdraft - (1.721) - (1.721)
Others* 6,218 (6,218) #
Balance as at March 31, 2024 54913 5,206 6 60,125
Cash inflows 1.832 = 1.832
Cash outflows (4.718) = & +,718)
Accrual of finance cost (other than interest on lease liability) - - 5931 5,931
Interest paid (other than interest on lease hability) - - (4,442) (4,442)
Accrual of interest 1.491 - (1491) =
Redemption of debentures (54) - - (54)
Bank overdralt - 3.062 - 3,062
Others* (4,125) 4125 = -
[Balance as at March 31, 2025 49,339 12,393 4 61,736
* Others indicate the effeet of movement between current and non-current borrowings basis the balance repayment period.
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Non-current Current
March 31,2025  March 31,2024 March 31,2028 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
Margin money deposits 651 T - -
Deposits with original and remaining maturity of 4491 253 - -
more than |2 months
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 - - 1,159 1228
months but not more than 12 months
1,142 200 1.159 1,228
Less: Disclosed under non-current linancial asscts (1,142) (900 - 4
irefer note 6)
» - 1,159 1,228

Note: Deposits earned interest based on the bank deposit rates.

Break up of financial assets earried at amortised cost
Investments (nole 5)

Other financial assets (note 6)

Trade recervables (note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 11.1)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents tnote 11.2)

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

f ]
2,180 1.339
2301 2,176
1.077 TY8
1,159 [ 228
6,723 5547
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated )
12.1  Equity share eapital
Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the vear
Changes duning the year

Balance at the end of the year

Issued, subseribed and fully paid- up share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes dunng the year

Balance at the end of the year

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
No. in lakhs Rs. No, in lakhs Rs
Rl] Q00 90 00
4410 44,100 - s
4,500 45,000 90 900
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. in laukhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs
10 100 10 100
2,804 18,043 . -
2814 28,143 10 1040

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The
Holding Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in

the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In event of liquidation of the Holding Company. the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after
distribution of all prefierential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

(a1} Shares held by ultimate parent company

Bngade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company

2814 lakhs (March 31, 2024 - 10 lakhs) Equity shares of Rs, 10 each

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

Equity shares of Rs.10 cach fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent compiny

Murch 31,2025 March 31, 2024

28,143 100

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

No. in lakh % holding

No. in lakh “ holding

2814 100"

10 1000
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(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

() Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025

Promoter Name No,of shares st Change during  No. of shares ot % of total shares % change during
the beginning of the year the end of the the year
the vear {in lakhs) year
{in Inkhs) {im Inkhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brignde Enterprises Limited. the ultimate parent company 10 2,804 2814 100,00 28043
As at March 31,2024
Promoter Name No,of shares at Chonge during  No.ofshares at % oftotal shares % change during
the beginning of the year the end of the the year
the year {in lakhs) year
(im lakhs) (in Inkhs)
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited. the ultimate parent company 10 - 10 10.00%
d) For details of shares reserved for issue under options. refer note 12.2
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Authorised share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No, in lakhs Rs. N in lakhs Rs.
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs.100 each (' OCRPS’):
Balance at the beginning of the year 281 28,100 281 28,100
Changes dunng the year (281) (28100 - -
Balance at the end of the year - - 281 28,100
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
o, in lakhs Rs. N in lakhs Rs.
0.01% B Series Cumulative Com pulsory Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs.100 each (CCPS):
Balance at the beginning of the vear 3 300 3 300
Changes during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 3 300 3 300
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share capital

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Naw, in lakhs Rs. No. in lakhs Rs.
OCRPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 280 28,043 280 28,043
Changes during the year (280) (28.043) : -
Balance at the end of the year i = 280 28043
Mareh 31,2028 March 31, 2024
N, in lakhs Rs. No, in lakhs Rs.
0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year = 150 2 150
Changes during the vear - " a 2
Balance at the end of the year 2 150 ? 150
Total 2 150 282 28,193

Terms of conversion/ redemption of OCRPS issued by the Holding Company

OCRPS has been issued carrving a coupon of 0.01% (point zero one per cent) per annum calculated on the face value of such OCRPS. The holder of OCRPS may
at any time prior 10 the expiry of 20 (twenty) years exercise the option 1o convent the OCRPS to equity shares. Each OCRPS shall be convertible into 10 {ien)
equity shares or lesser number basid on the consent of the holder. The holder of OCRPS shall be entitled 1o vating rights as per the Companies Act, 2013

“The holder has confirmed compulsary conversion of the OCRPS into equity shares in the ratio of 1.10 and accordingly OCRPS has been recorded and disclosed as
"Instruments entirely equity in nature”

With effect from May 10, 2004, pursusnt to the option exercised by the holder of the OCRPS and approval of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
2.80.43.000 OCRPS have been converted to 28.04.30,000 equity shares of the Holding Company of Rs. 10/- each at a ratio of 1:10 (i.e., 10 Equity Shares issued
for every | OCRPS held by the holder of the OCRPS).

Terms of conversion/ redemption of CCPS issued by the subsidiary

B Series Cumulative Compulsory Converuble Preference Shares holder may at any time prior to expiry of nine years exercise the option to convert @ len equity
shares for every one preference share held The dividend is payable as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the subsidiary. The preference shares rank
ahead of the equity shares in the event of a liquidation. The holder of CCPS shall be entitled to voting rights as per the Companies Act, 2013

S h v ul

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
Nil {March 31, 2024 - 280,43,000) OCRPS of Rs_ 100 cach ¥ 28,043
1,50,000 {March 31, 2024 - 1,50,000) 0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs.100 each 150 150
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Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the vear ended Murch 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stuted )

{b) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

OCRPS of Rs. 100 ¢ach :

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs. 100 each :

Brignde Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company

{c) Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No, in Inkhs % holding Nu. in lnkhy ¥ holding
¥ - 280 100F o
2 100" 2 100

No. of shares st Change during No, of shares at % of Total Shares % change

Bt Nas the beginning the year the end of the during the year
of the year year
(in lukhs) (in lnkhs)
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
OCRPS of Rs. 100 each 28043 (28,043) = - =100,
0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs. 100 each 150 - 150 50,0070 -

As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares at Change during No. of shares at % of Total Shares % change

. the beginning the year the end of the during the year
Promoter Name
of the year year
{in lakhs) (im lakhs)
Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company
OCRPS o Rs. 100 ¢ach 28,043 - 28043 100,00%, -
0.01% B Senes CCPS of Rs. 100 each 150 - 150 50.00% -
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13.1

Other equity

Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments
Balance at the beginning of the vear

Add: Equity component of interest-free related party loans duning the year -
Balance at end of the year (A) 6,750 6,750

Equity component of compound financial instruments being deemed capital contribution (i.¢. interest-free related panty loans) represents the residual amount after
deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined for the liability component and tax effect thereon

6,750 6,750

Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the vear
Add: Additions during the vear
Balance at end of the year (B) 1 1
Capital reserve represents reserve recorded in the subsidiary company as part of demerger scheme, which can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act,

Revaluation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the vear 829 820
Add: Additons during the vear - -
Balance at end of the year (C) 829 829
Revaluation reserve represents reserve arising on revaluation of land in the subsidiary company  Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus refating to the particular
asset being sold 15 transferred directly to retained camings

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the vear
Add: Additions during the vear
Balance at end of the year (D)
General reserve represents amounts transferred from retammed earnings in the subsidiary company. which can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act.

91 91

21 91

Retained earnings / (deficit)

Balance at the beginning of the year (29.260) (31.753)
Profit for the vear 2.019 1487
Other comprehensive income For the vear (35) 6
Balance at the end of the vear (E) (27.276) (29.26(0)
19,605 11,589

Total other equity (A+B+C+D+E)
Retained eamnings are the profitstloss) that the Group has eared/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid 10
shareholders. Retained carnings include re-measurement loss | (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and

Luoss,
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13.2

Non-controlling interests®

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,197 369
Profit for the year 347 627
Other comprehensive income for the vear I |
Balance at the end of the year 1,545 1,197
sincludes instruments entirely equity in nature issued by the subsidiary company to its sharcholders being non-controlling interests
Authorised share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

N, in bakhs Rs. Nu, in lakhs Rs,
0.01% A Series Cumulative Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
(CCPS):
Balance at the beginning of the vear 34 3400 34 3,400
Changes duning the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 34 3.400 34 3,400
0.01% B Series Cumulative Com pulsory
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.100 each
(CCPS):
Balance at the beginning of the vear 3 300 3 300
Changes during the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the vear 3 300 3 300
Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up share eapital

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

No, in lakhs Rs. No, in lakhs Rs.
0.01% A Serics CCPS of Rs.100 each:
Balance a1 the beginning of the vear ! 50 I 50
Changes during the year . - & -
Balance at the end of the year 1 S0 1 S0
0.01% B Series COPS of Rs, 100 ench:
Balance at the beginning of the vear 2 150 2 150
Changes during the yvear - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 2 150 2 150

Terms of conversion/ redemption of CCPS issued by the subsidiary

A Series and B Series Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares holder may at any time prior to expiry of nine years exercise the option to convert o
ten equity shares for every one preference share held The dividend 15 payable as may be decided by the Board of Directors af the subsidiary. Each holder of CCPS
is entitled to one vole per share, The prefirence shares rank ahend of the equity shares in the event ofa liquidation, The holder of CCPS shall be cntitled to voting
rights as per the Companies Act, 2013

Helders of A Series CCPS March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Subramanian Fngineening Limited, the non-controlling interests
50,000 (March 31, 2024 - 50,000} 0.01% A Series CCPS of’ Rs. 100 each 50 50
Holders of B Series CCPS Muirch 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Subramanian Engineering Limited, the non-comtrolling interesis
150,000 {March 31, 2024 - 1,50,000) 0.01% B Series CCPS of Rs.100 each 150 150
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14 Borrowings

Effective Maturity
Tt 4 March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Non-current borrowings
Term loan from banks (secured) 8-10% Upto 2033 39294 42534
Loans from related parties (unsecured: refer note 29) Note (1) Note (i1) (0045 12,297

49,339 24831
Debentures (unsecured)
1,00,000 0.01% Unsecured unlisted A series Non-Convertible Debentures (A Series NCD) of Rs. 100/- each - 82
fully paid up

49,339 54913
Current borrowings
Current maturities of debentures (Unsecured)
53920 0.01% Unsecured unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) of Rs. 100i- each fully paid up - 49
100,000 0.01% Unsecured unlisted A series Non-Convernble Debentures (A Series NCD) of Rs, 100/- each 92 -
fully paid up
Bank overdraft ( Secured) B-10% On demand 3465 403
Current matunities of non-current borrowings - term loan from banks (Secured) 8-10% Upto 2033 5,108 4,754
Curmrent matunities of non-current borrowings - Loans from related parties (unsecured) Note (1) Note (i) 3,728 -
Total Current borrowings 12,393 5.206
Notes:

{i) Term loan from banks are secured by way of first mortgage of hotel project properties, assignment of certain current assets and future receivables. The loans
carries floating interest rate in the range of 8-10%s and are repayable over period of 29-153 monthly instalments of Rs.37-Rs.959 lakhs.

{ii) Loan from related parties are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repayable from 2025, On July 1, 2020, the Holding Company and its Ultimate Parent
Company entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs 20,000 lakhs and repayable in quarterly instalments of Rs.1,000 lakhs each from June
2025 to March 2030, The existing loan payable of Rs. 11274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs9,881 lakhs and Imerest payable - Rs. 1,393 lakhs) was
converted into interest-free loan as part of the aforesaid agreement. The Holding Company has drawn loan of Rs, 5.016 lakhs during the period July 27, 2020 to March
31,2021 and Rs. 1300 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 1o March 31, 2023, The Holding Company has accounted the aforesaid loan, being interest-free in
nuture, as compound financial instruments in accordance with Ind AS 32 with effective interest rate of 12%.

(iif) Bonk overdrafis are secured by way of morigage of a hotel project property, assignment of certain current assets and future receivables
(iv) The quarterly returns | statements filed by the Group with banks under the borrowings arrangements are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Group.
(v) With regard to the borrowings from banks, the Group has utilised the loans solely for the purposes for which they were taken.

(vi1 No funds raised on shori-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Group.
(vt} The Group has sausfied all debt covenanis as per the terms of borrowings.

Debentures (issued by the subsidiary company)
i) NCD have been issucd at par carrying an interest rate of 0,01% per annum and with effect from March 25, 2020, These are mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of

5 years from the date of its issue i.¢., March 20, 2025, The same has been redeemed during the vear ended March 31, 2025,

ii) A series NCD have been issued al par carrving an interest rate of 0.0 1% per annum and with effect from December 07, 2020, These are mandatonly redeemable at
the expiry of 3 years from the date of its issue i.c.. December 06, 2025
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15 Other financial liabilities

Non-Curreat Curreat
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Leas¢ deposits 34 209 191 -
Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment - - 1.273 2,050
Employes benefits pavable - . 602 548
Imerest acerued and not due - - 4 6
Intenest free deposits from customers - - 234 237
Other payable - . a8 263
34 209 2,332 3,104
16 Provisions Nan-Current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 Murch 31, 2024
Provision for l‘liwll_'l.'u‘ henefis
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 146 102 47 40
Provision for leave encashment 9 7 145 103
155 109 192 143
17 Other liabilities Non-Current Current
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Advance from customers - . 611 324
Deferred government grants® 862 878 16 16
Deferred lease income - - 153 154
Statutory dues payable - - 605 954
862 B78 1,385 1,648

* The Holding Company has recerved grants in the nature of capital subsidy, interest subsidy and electricity duty subsidy of Rs. 1.056 lakhs under the Tourism Policy
tor the State of Gujarat (2015-2020) from the government of Gujaral for the purpose of construction of a hotel property in GIFT city, Gujarat
The capital subsidy is towards capital investment made by the Holding Company in the hotel property. Accordingly, amount of capital subsidy received is treated as a
deferred government grant and is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset,
The interest subsidy and electricity duty subsidy are towards the costs incurred by the Holding Company towards construction of the hotel property and the same has
been recogmised as income in the statement of profit and loss to the extent of the comesponding expenses incurred by the Holding Company
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18 Trade payables

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 174 136
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- Payable to refated parties (refer note 29) 3ls 152
- Payable 1o other partics 3,230 2445
3.812 2,733
Trade payvables ageing schedule:
Particulars Unbilled Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
and not _ Total
due capam | SHa] 1-2 Years 2-3 Years >3 Years
Year
Murch 31, 2025
MSME - 74 - - - 274
(Others 1.979 1,254 300 5 . 3,538
Disputed dues -MSME - . - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - = = -
Total 1979 1,528 300 5 - 3,812
March 31, 2024
MSME - 136 - - - 136
(Others 1414 1,143 I 8 25 2,597
Disputed dues -MSME . . . - %
Disputed dues - Others : - . = - -
Total 1414 1,279 1 8 25 2,733
Note: Trade payuble are outstanding from the date of transactions
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
March 31,2025 Murch 31,2024
Mon-current borrowings (note 1<) 49,339 54913
Current borrowings (note |4) 12,393 3,206
Other financial liabilities (note 13) 2,366 3313
Lease liabilities (note 28) 14,020 11.834
Trade pavables (note 18) 3.812 2733
81.930 77,999

Bengalurul ©
ﬁ. IIf
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19

19.1

20

11

Revenue from operations

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers
- Revenue from hosptality services 46,007 39473
Income from leasing 643 532
46,650 40,005

Other operating revenue

- Other ancillary services 175 163
178 165
46,825 40,170

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers by tming of transfer of goods or services:

Revenue from contracts with customers March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Revenue from hospitality services and other ancillary services - Recognised over ime 46,182 39,638
Contract balances
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Trade receivables 2301 2176
Unbilled revenue 170 175
2471 2351
Advance from customers 611 524
611 324

Trade receivable are due from the date of transactions.
Unbilled revenue pertains o transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and contractual invoices have not been raised,

Contract liabilities includes advance from customers and deferred revenue representing ransaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance
obligations, The outstanding balance has decreased primanly on account of recognition of revenue in current year

Revenue recognised during the period that was included in the contract habilities balance at 34 03
the beginning of the penod:
Other income
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost:
Bank deposits 133 164
Others 20 28
Government grants [ 16
Liabilities no longer required written back 35 -
Reversal of impairment allowance for bad and doubiful debts 15 59
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment (net) 2
Miscellancous income 32 42
43 315
Cost of materials eonsumed
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Inveniory at the beginmng of the vear 91 436
Add: Purchases during the vear 4336 4189
5147 4625
Less: Inventory al the end of the vear 670 1591
4,476 4034
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22  Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note 32)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Stafl wellure expenses

213 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets

{refier note 3.1)
Amortization of imangible assets (refer note 3.2)

24 Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilitics at amortised cost
on bank borrowings
on related party borrowings (refer note 29)
on lease limbilities
on others
Other borrowing costs

25  Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 28)
Repairs & maintenance

Buildings

Plant & machinery

Others
Sub-contracting expenses
Consumable costs
Insurance
Rates und taxes
Payment to auditor { refer note below)
Property taxes
Advertising and sales promotion
Agency commission
Security charges
Trmning and recruitment expenses
Legal and professional charges
Directors sitting fees
Printing and stationery expenses
Travelling & conveyance
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (net)
Communication expenses
Exchange difference (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors (excluding goods and service tax):
As auditor: Audil fees
Out of pocket expenses

Murch 31,2028 March 31, 2024
7.364 6500
450 396
817 730
BTG 7626
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4.930 4320
50 44
4.980 4.364
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
4,005 4,400
1,491 1,335
1332 763
3 2
435 389
7,256 6,889
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2919 2875
1.832 781
489 550
423 409
3mn 381
1.911 1141
1,545 1332
189 237
m 450
93 62
606 464
823 597
1.693 1,289
19 12
100 74
2,762 bl g}
54 |
184 159
814 638
12 198
24 180
db 25
196 196
17.274 14,364
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
B9 59
(] 3
95 fil
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26

27

Earnings per share ("EPS’)
Basic EPS amounis are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 1o equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the vear.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit or loss antributable 1o equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 2019 2487
Effect of dilution m i
Profit attributable to equity shareholders adjusted for the effect of dilution 2,019 1,487
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (No.in lakhs) 2814 2814
[includes Nil {March 31, 2024 2 804 lakhs) equity shares to be issued on conversion of OCRPS

being a mandatorily convertible instrument. Also refer note 13.2]

Effect of dilution £ =
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 1814 2,814

Note: The impact of OCRPS, being mandatorily convertible instruments, have not been considered in the computation of diluted EPS as the same has already
been included in the computation ol basic EPS

Commitments and contingencies

a, Capital commitment
The estimated amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is Rs. 19,007 lakhs (March 31, 2024:

Rs. 2,298 lakhs),

b. Contingent linbilities

March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024

(1) Bank guarantee 27 358
(i1} Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in the nature of:
«Income Tax demands 267 151
-Goods and Service Tax demands 2,033

(1) Property tax demand under litigation

The Holding Company has been discharging property tax in respect of its hotel properties. In this regard. the Holding Company has received a demand notice
from the municipal authority assessing the property tax for certain hotel property for the period from financial year 2011-12 to financinl year 2021222
resulting in demand of Rs.9.222 lakhs including interest and penalty thereon and the Holding Company has subsequently paid Rs 4,093 lakhs under protest
and an additional amount of Rs 510 lakhs 1o be paid under proiest. which are provided for. During the year ended March 31, 2025, aforesaid demand was
revised by the municipal authority to Rs. 2,874 lakhs (net of payment under protest already provided for) for the financial year 2011-12 to financial vear 2023,
24 under One time settlement Scheme by a competent authority

The Holding Company has litigated the aforesaid matter, which is pending adjudication. The Holding Company is reasonably confident of a favourable
outcome in respect of the aforesaid matter based on the management’s evaluation and the legal opinion obtained by the management. Pending ultimate
outcome ol the matter, no adjustments have been made in the accompanying consohdated financial statements,

{iv) The Code on Social Security. 2020 (*Code’) relating 1o emplovee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Cerain sections of the Code cume into ¢ffect on 3 May 2023 However, the final
rules/interpretation have not vet been issued. Based on a preliminary assessiment, the Group believes the impact of the change will not be significant.
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28 Leases

A. Group as Lessee during the year

The Group has taken land parcels on lease for operation/construction of holel units with a lease period of 25-35 years with certain escalation
and extension clauses. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the “short-term lease” recognition exemptions for

these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and
maovements during the vear:

Balance as at April 01,2023

Additions during the year

Depreciation during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additions during the year

a) Amount of lease lnbilities recognised

b) Difference between the lease deposit and present value of lease deposit
Depreciation during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year:

Balance as at April 01,2023

Additions dunng the year

Aceretion of interest

Payment of principal portion of lease labilitwes
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Additions during the vear

Accretion of interest

Payment ol principal portion of lease liabilites
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at March 31, 2025

Non-current lease liabilities
Current lease liabilities
Total

Right of use assets  Right of use

(Leasehold land) ussets (Office

cquipments)

5,008 -

6,000 -

(181} -

10.917 -

1,327 334

463 -

(422) 183)

12,285 251

Lease linbilities

6,752
6,000
763
(1.079)
1602)
11.834
1.661
1332
(103)
1694

14.020

March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024

13937 11.834
83

14,020 11.834

The effective interest rate for lease habilities s 12%, The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 51

Statement of profit and loss

Depreciation expense of nght-of-use sssets

Interest expense on lease linbilities

Expense relating to shori-term leases (included in other expenses under rent)
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Statement of cash flows
Cush outflow for leases - towards principal

Cash outflow for leases - towards mtenest

B. Group as lessor during the year

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

305 181
332 763

1,032 781

2859 1,728
——

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

103 1079
6494 602

The Group hus entered into cancellable operating leases consisting of certain retail and banguet spaces m the hotels on short term basis with

renewal clauses, The Group s also required to mamiain the property over the lease lerm

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease rentals recogmised as an income 0 the statement of profit and loss 643 532
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year 5h 83
Afiter one vear but ot more than five vears 30 -
Maore than [five vears - -
8t 83
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29 Related party information
L. List of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have been entered into:

Ultimate Parent Company Brigade Enterprises Limited ['BEL'|
Fellow Subsidiaries WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ["WTC'| Brigade Hospitality Services Limited [BHSL'|
Perungudi Renl Estates Private Limited ['PREPL'| Brigade Innovations LLP ['BILLP)

Brigade (Gujarat) Projects Private Limited [BGPPL|
Bngade Foundation Trust['BFT']

Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited [BFOS'|
Brngade Properties Private Limited| BPPL']

Mysore Holdings Private Limited [MHPL'|

BCV Developers Private Limited ['BCVY)

Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and relative of KMP

Directors of Ms. Nirupa Shankar (Managing Director w_e.f October 05, 2024)
Holding Company  Mr Vineet Verma

Mr Amar Mysore

Mr. Bijou Kurien (w.e £ March 28, 2024

Mr. Anup S Shah {w.e.f March 28, 2024)

Ms. Jyot Marang (w.e.f. May 10, 2024)

Mr Nakul Anand (w.e.f October 05, 2024)

Drirectors of Mr. Badri Palaninppan
Subsidiary Ms. Visalakshi
Ms. Susan Mathew
Mr. Bijou Kurien (w.e.l. October 23, 2024)
Mr. Sanjeev Sridharan {w.e £, November 08, 2024)

Relative of KMP  Ms_ Pavitra Shankar

Chief Financial Mr. Ananda Natarajan
Officer

Compuny Secretory Ms. P Shivaleela Reddy (upto August 09, 2024)
Ms. Niddhi Parekh {upto April 8, 2023
Ms Akanksha Bijawat (w.e.f October 01, 2024)

Manager Mr Ravan Aranha { wee [ January 26, 2024 upto October 4. 2024)
Mr Arndam Mukherjee (upto January 35, 2024)

Other shareholder of the subsidiary company
Subramanyam Engineering Limited | SEL'|
Mr. Badrn Palaniappan

Entities in which the other shareholders of the subsidiary company exercises controlsignificant influence
SRP Gears Pvt Lid ['SRP Gears']
SRP Tools Pyt Lid ['SRP Tools']
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1L Transactions with related parties

Nature of transaction Name of related party March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from hospitality services 21s 131
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 15 183
Interest on borrowings BEL 1476 1.321
Purchase of Malerials p |5
Rent paid 724 597
Capital advance paid 1,250 -
Purchase of matenals | 0
Revenue from hospitality services BHSL ;) 7
Capital advance paid 76 -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 75 138
Revenue from hospitality services BCY U =
Revenue from hospitality services 10 9
Redemption of non-convertible debentures SEL 54 -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company ‘ 4 3
Interest on non-converuble debentures 15 14
Revenue from hospitality services BPPL I -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company = 8
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company . I 2
Revenue from hospitality services s | 0
Revenue from hospitality services WIe 15 51
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company 202 218
Revenue from hospitality services 6 2
Reimbursement of expenses received by the Company BGPPL 3 -
Reimbursement of expenses made by the Company I 3
PREPL 2 +
BILLP 16 3
Revenue from hospitality services . sla & .
BFT 0 2
Badri Palaniappan 1] 0
SRP Gears 0 0
ROU asset acquired Nirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 895 -
Lease liabilities crested consequent to the ROU Nirupa Shankar 895 -
Pavitra Shankar 893 »
Interest on lease liabilites Nirupa Shankar 57 -
Pavitra Shankar 57 -
Security deposit - lease Nirupa Shankar 250 =
Pavitra Shankar 250 =
Bijou kunen 16 -
Nukul Anand B -
Directors Sitting Fees A 8 jtheh ia -
Jyou Narang 15 -
Sanjeev Sridharan 1] -
Susan Mathew 2 |
Rayan Aranhn 34 19
Akanksha Bijawat a2 =
Salaries and allowances - short-term employee benefits Ananda Natarajan k[ ”
Niddhi Parckh : [
P Shivaleeln Reddy 4 6
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29 Related party disclosure (continued)

Il Balances with related parties
Nature of balance Name of related party March 31,2025 Mareh 31,2024
Non-current borrowings {including current maturities) 13.773 12,297
Equity component of interest-free loan 6,750 6,750
Trade Receivables BEL 30 15
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (B Series CCPS) 150 150
Capital advance 1,250 -
Trade pavables 2 5
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 5 "
A Series and B Series CCPS) 200 200
Debt component of compound financial instruments SEL 85 131
(NCD and A Series NCD) B
Trade receivables 2 4
e " Ms. Nirupa Shankar 952 -
Lease liabilities ereated consequent to the ROU *4s Pavitrs Shokar 352 -
Ms. Nirupa Shankar 150 .
il
Toude payabtes Ms. Pavitra Shankar 150 -
Capital advance BHSL 76 -
WTC 14 -
: BHSL - 147
Trade payabl
. PREPL . 0
BFOS 0 0
WTC 4 19
BHSL 0 0o
BILLP | 0
BPPL - 4
BGPPL 8 |
Trade receivables e o 0
MHPL - 2
PREPL 2 -
SRP Gears - 0
Badri Palaniappan -
Notes:

I The related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length rransactions. Outstanding balances at the year end
are unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or pavable

2. In respect of the transactions with the related parties, the Holding Company and its subsidiary have complied with the provisions of Section 177
& 188 of the Companies Aet, 2013 where applicable, and the details have been disclosed above, as required by the applicable accounting standards,

3. The salaries and allowances do not include gratuity and compensated absences cost as the same are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
made at company level

4. "0" represents transactions and balances with amounts being less than Rs. 50,000

v. Other information:

Loan from related parties are unsecured and carries interest of 12% and are repavable from 2025 On July 1, 2020, the Holding Company and its
Ultimate Parent Company entered into an agreement for interest-free unsecured loan of upto Rs. 20,000 lakhs and repayable in quarterly instalments
of Rs. 1,000 lakhs each from June 2025 w March 2030 The existing loan payable of Rs. 11,274 lakhs as on June 30, 2020 (Principal - Rs.9,881 lakhs
and [nterest payable - Rs 1,393 lakhs) wus converted into interest-free loan as part of the aforesaid agreement, The Holding Company has drawn
loan of Rs 5,016 Inkhs during the period July 27. 2020 to March 31, 2021 and Rs. 1500 lakhs during the period November 29, 2022 o March 31,
2023, The Holding Company has accounted the aforesaid loan, being interest-free in nature, as compound financial instruments in accordance with
Ind AS 32 with effective interest rate of 12%.

3 Segment reporting

The Group 1s engaged n the business of hospitality. The Board of Directors being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. All operating segments operating results are
reviewed regularly by CODM to make decisions about resources 1o be allocated to the segments and assess their performance, CODM believes that these are
governed by same set of nisks and returns hence, CODM reviews theim as one component. Hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under
Ind-AS 108 - Segment information with respect 1o the single reportable segment, other than those already provided in the accompanving consolidated
linancial statements. Further, the Holding Company and it's subsidiary is domieiled in India and the Group's non-curment assets are located in Indin. There is
no wdentifiable magor customer in the Group who is contributing more than 10%s of revenue

LRI \
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3 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, rade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks
and ensures that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropnate policies and procedures and that financial nsks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives.

i Market risk

Market risk is the nsk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Nuetate because of changes m market prices,
Market nsk comprises of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and price nisk

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk 15 the nsk that the fair value or future cash Mows of the Group's financial instruments will Nuctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debi
obligations with {loating interest rates, The Group manages its interest mte nsk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in imerest rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the entity’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact of floating rate borrowings, as follows.

5 Change in Effect on
Particulary interest rate | loss before tax
March 31, 2025 +I"a dad
-1%a (444}
March 31, 2024 “|% 473
1% {473)

b} Curreney risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuaie because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates anses on account ol purchases from foreign countries. The
Giroup has not taken any derivative instrument during the year and there is no derivative instrument outstanding as at the year end

The Group's unhedged foreign currency exposure at the end of reporting period is as below:

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Tride Pavable 360 258

Mote: There is no significant exposure to the Group towards foreign exchange fluctuation.

b) Price nsk

The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. The Group’s management has developed and enacted a risk
minagement strategy regarding commeodity price risk and its mitigation The Group is subject to the price nsk variables, which are expected
to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss thal may arise on outstanding financial mstruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit nsk anises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financral assets,

Orther financial assets are bank deposits with banks and hence, the Group does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial
assets.

With respect 1o other financial assets, the Group has constituted teams 10 review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary
mitigations, wherever required. The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impainnent
losses on trade recervables and unbilled revenue. The Group follows the simplified approach for recogmition of impairment allowance on
trade receivables wherein, it recozmses impainnent allowance based on lifetime ECLs a1 each reporting date. Al the balance sheet date,
there was no significant concentration of credit risk and exposure thercon,

fii. Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective 15 to maimain & balance between continuity of funding and fexibility through the use of bormowings and lease
comtracts, The Group has assessed the concentration of nisk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low: The table below
summarises the matunty profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Maturity period March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Financial labilities « Current

Current borrowings - erm loans from banks Within | vear 8.907 8.801
Cument borrowings - loans from related parties Within | year 4,000 -

Curment borrowings - bank overdmfi Repavable on demand 365 403
Curmrent borrowings - Debentures Within | year o 54
Trade payables Within | vear 3312 3,733
Lease liabilmies Within | vear 204 -

Other financial liabilines Within | year % 7 3

Financial liabilities - Non Current

Non-Curnent borrowings - tesm loans from banks Between | =10 vears J2.795 61,260
Non=Current borrowings - loans from related panies Between |-10 years 13,790 17.790
Non-Curment borrowings - Debentures Between |- 10 vears “ 100
Lense liabilities Between 1-30) vears 41.581 19,560
Otheer financial habilities o\ Between 1-3 years 34 209
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32 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Group operates defined gratuity plan for its employees, Uinder the plan, every employes who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure at |5 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of' service
The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amount recognised in the balance
sheet with respect to gratuity. The defined benefit plan 1s unfunded, except as otherwise stated
Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan assets ('FVoPA') - Year ended March 31, 2015

Eoginn Cuniynn 1 Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
profit or loss
Rethra - PR\ cruarial | Actuarial Contribu-
.| Opening Sub-total | Benefits i changes changes | Experie- | Sub-total| tions | Closing
Gratuity bal " {excluding & il s b bal
alance | Service | Interest | included | paid arising from arising nee | included ¥ alance
. amounts 5 . A lover
cost | expense | in profit included changes in | from changes| adjustm- in employ
or loss . v ® demographie | in financial ents Oct
in net interest 5 y
assumptions | assumptions
expense)
DBO 142 35 10 63 {21) - (7 17 36 46 - 332
FVaoPA - - - - 112} 2 A - - E] 49 39
Net 142 55 1 [ () (2) (7 17 3o 44 (49) 193
liability
Changes in the defined benefit obligation ('DBO') and fair value of plan assets (FVoPA') - Year ended March 31,2024
Expense charged io profit or Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
LI N Actuarial Actuarial N
Sub-total - changes changes | Experie- | Sub-total s
; i g fi xeludi : : = tions | Closin
Gratuity Ogening Service | Interest | included Sty (excludlog arising from arising nce included virg
halance paid amounts ; - : by balance
cost | expense | in profit 3 changes in  |from changes| adjustm- in
included ALl e ! employer
or loss demographic | in financial ents 0cl
in net interest b
assumptions | assumptions
expense)
DBO 106 40 L 47 [12) = (3) 3 I | 142
FVoPA - - - - - . . - * A - »
Net 106 40 7 47 (12) - (3) 3 1 1 - 142
{liability

The principal assumptions used

in determining gratuity

abligations are shown below

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.65% 7.11%
Future salary benefit levels 7 34% 7.38%
Maortality rte 10025 of TALM 2012-1 100% of IALM 2012-2014
2014
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A quantitative sensitivity analvsis for significant assumptions is as shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assumptions Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate Discount Rate Salary Growth Rate
Sensitivity Level =% + 1% -1%s = 1% -1% + 1% -1% + 1%
Impact on DBO 52 (34) (34) 12 37 28) (28) 37
"o change compared to base 27% -18% -18% IT% 26% -20% -20%) 26%)|
due to sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as n result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the
defimed benelit obligation,

Maturity profile of defincd benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) - § veurs

The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within | year 47 40
Between | and 5 vears 137 70
More than § vears 199 87
]Tntll expected payments 383 197

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan asset (investment in insurance fund) for the next annual reporting period is Rs. 29 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil)

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary oveniime. Thus. the Group is
exposed to vanous risks in providing the above gratuity benefit, the most significant of which are as follows:

Interest Rate nsk © The plan exposes the Group to the nisk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an mcrease in the ultimate cost of providing
the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability,

Liquidity Risk - This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short term gratuity pay-outs, This may anse due to non availability of sulficient cashicash
equivalents to meet the liabilities

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan 1s calculated wath the assumption of salury increase rate of plan participants in future.
Dewiation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will
have a bearing on the plan's liability,

Demographic Risk - The Group has used cerain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed 1o the risk of actual
experience uming out to be worse compared 1o the assumption.
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33 Fair values .
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in o forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, ade payables, and other financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair values largely due to their short-term maturities

if) The management assessed that the carrying values of bank depesits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values based on
cash flow discounting using parameters such as interest rates, tenure of instrument, creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed
project, as applicable.

iii) Alsa refer note 3 for investments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

These financial assets and financial labilities are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair valug hierrchy due to the use of unobservable inputs as explained
above. There have been no transfers between levels during the year.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

Murch 31,2025 March 31,2024
Particulars Carrying Fair Vilue Carrying Fair Value
Value {Level 3) Value {Level 3)
[Financial Assets
Measured at amortsed oost
Trade receivables 2301 2,30 2176 2178
Cash and cush equivalents 1.077 1.077 798 798
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,159 1,139 1,228 1228
Onther financial assels 2180 2,180 1,339 1,339
Meastrcd i fatr value theough profit or loss
Investment 6 6 6 6
|Financial Liabilities
Mdeasnrcd i umernsed cust
Borrowings 61,732 61.732 60,119 60,119
Trade pavables 3812 3,812 273 2733
Lease liabilities 14,020 14.020 11,834 11,834
Other financial liabilities 2366 2,366 3313 3313

34 Capital management

The Group's objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
return to shareholders, issue’ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below

- Equity represents total equity of the Group
- Net Debt includes borrowings ( non-current and current), trade payables, lense liabilities and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and bank

balances other than cash and cash equivalents,

|Particulars March 31,2625 | March 31,2024
Borrowings 61,732 60,119
Trade pavables 1812 2,733
Lease linbilities 14,020 11,834
Other financial liabilities 2,366 3313
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (2,236} (2.026)
Net Debt (A) 79.694 75,973
Equity share capital 28,143 100
Instruments entirely equity in nature 150 28,193
Other equity and non-controlling interests (18,060} (20.392)
Equity (B) 10,233 7,001
Equity plus net debt (C=A+B) 89,927 83,874
Gearing ratio( D=X/C) 9%, 91%

1n order 1o achieve the objective of maximizing shareholders value. the Group's capital management, amongst other things, ams to ensure that it meets financal
covenants attached to the interesi-bearmg borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the tinancial covenants would
allow the bank to call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of above mentioned interest-bearing borrowings

No changes were made i the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years
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35 Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial information

36

(i) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

{ii) The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956

{iii) The Group does not have any charges or sausfaction which is vet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory penod.

tiv) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virual Currency during the financial year.

{v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or imvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Group to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding. whether recorded in wniting or
otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Group ("Ulimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, secunity or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianes

{vi) Mo funds have been received by the Group from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shail, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any gusrantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ulumate Beneficiaries

{vii} The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
duning the year in the 1ax assessments under the Income fax Act. 1961

(viil) The Group is not a declared Wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

The Group has defined process 1o take daily back-up of books of account in electronic mode on servers physically located in India. However, the
backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to individual hotel units of the Holding
Company has not been maintained on servers physically located in [ndia on daily basis,

Further, the Group has used accounting software (SAP S/4 HANA by the Holding Company and Tally Prime by the Subsidiary Company) for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded i the accounting software, except that audit trail Feature is not enabled for certain changes made. if any. using
privileged’ administrative access rights fo the application and the underlving database and in respect of individual hotel units of the Holding Company
wherein its accounting software did not have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year. Further no instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with was noted in respect of the accounting sofiware to the extent audit trail feature is enabled. Additionally. the audit wrail in respect of the
relevant prior year has not been preserved by the Holding company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

The management s taking steps to ensure that the books of account are maintained as required under the applicable statute.
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Group Information
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group includes a component as detailed below
Subsidiary
= Country of : i
Principal activities 1 + % Equity interest held by the Group
. ncorporation /
Name of the entity ;
! Principal place of
business March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited Hospitality Services India 50.01% 50.01%
Financial information of subsidiary that has non-controlling interests:
{i) Summary of assets and liabilities
L\Iarlﬂl 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current assets 643 £59
Non-current asscls 12,491 13,047
Current liabilities 12,130) (2,399)
Mon-current liabilities (4.857) (6,055)
Total Equity 6,147 5,452
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 4,602 4255
Non-Controlling Interests 1.545 1,197
6,147 5.452

(i) Summary of profit and loss

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Tonal Income 6,527 5,925
Profit(loss) for the year 694 1,254
Total comprehensive income 695 1,257

Attributahle to:
Equity holders of the parent M7 629
Non-Controlling Interests 348 628
695 1,257

(iii) Summary of cash Mows

Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities 2,765 2,175
Net cash flow {used in) investing activities (489) (263)
Net cash Mow from / (used in) linancing activities 12.058) {2,059
Net cash inflow/ (ouiflow) during the year 218 (147)

Additional information to consolidated financial statements based on the audited financial statements of the component of the Group
(i) Net Assets/ (Liabilities)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As % of As % of
consolidated net Amount consolidated net Amount
assels issets
Parent
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited 125% 12815 141% 11178
Subsidiary
SRP Prosperita Hotel Venture Limited 60" 6,147 6% 5452
Sub total 185% 18,962 210% 16,630
Elimination and consolidation adjustments =107 (10.274) -125% 19.926)
Sub total 5% 5688 85% 6,704
Non-controlling interest in the subsidiary 15% 1.545 15% 1197
Consolidated Total 1O 11,233 100% 7.901
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(ii) Total comprehensive income
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Share in profitf{loss)

Share in other comprehensive

Share in total comprehensive income

income
As% of As % of As % of
Name of the entity consolidated  Amount ERRRONEAG] St Amount oxiruie I.nm Amount
Pl beas comprehensive comprehensive
) income income

Parent
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited 1% 1.672 103% 135) T0"a 1,637
Subsidiary
SRP Prosperita Hotel Venture Limited 290, 694 -3t I 0% 695
Sub total 100 2,366 100%: (34) 100% 1,332
Elimination and consolidabon adjustments -15% (347) 3% () -15% (348)
Sub total B5"% 2019 103%, (35) 5% 1.984
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary:
Share in profit/ loss) 15% H7 -3% 1 15% 348
Consolidated Total 100% 2,366 100 (34) 100% 1,332

For the vear ended March 31, 2024

Share in profit/{loss)

Shire in other comprehensive

Share in total comprehensive income

income
As % of As % of
. ¥ " % i consolidated other consolidated total
Name of the entity consolidated  Amount 2 Amount X Amount
Pioltor lis comprehensive comprehensive

incnﬂs income
Parent
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited 60" 1,860 57% 4 6% 1,864
Subsidiary
SRP Prosperita Hotel Venture Limited 0% 1,254 43% 3 0% 157
Sub total 100% 3114 100% 7 100% 3,121
Elimination and consolidation adjustments =20% (627) -14% (1) -20% (628)
Sub total B0 2,487 86%% 6 RO 1493
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary:
Share in profit/( loss) 0% 627 14% | 20% 628
Consolidated Total 100% 3114 100" i 100%: 3,121

The Group has accumulated losses of Rs. 27,276 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 29,260 lakhs) and wial equity of Rs. 10,233 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 7.901 lakhs)
The Group's current liabilities exeeed its current assets by Rs. 11,405 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 6,077 lakhs). The Group is in the initial phase of its operations
and Brigade Enterprises Limited, the ultimate parent company. is committed to provide financial and operational support to the Group for its profitable operations in

the foresecable future.
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40 Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date,
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